
A meeting of the Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board will be held on Tuesday, 
17th December, 2019 at 10.00 am in Council Chamber, SBC HQ

AGENDA

Time No Lead Paper

10:00 1 ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
APOLOGIES

Chair

10.01 2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

 Members should declare any financial and 
non financial interests they have in the 
items of business for consideration, 
identifying the relevant agenda item and the 
nature of their interest. 

Chair

10:03 3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS 
MEETING

Chair (Pages 3 - 
10)

10:05 4 MATTERS ARISING
Action Tracker

Chair (Pages 11 - 
14)

10:10 5 FOR DECISION

5.1  2019/20 Budget Pressures Chief Officer

10:35 6 FOR NOTING

6.1  Bi-annual Review of Risk Register Chief Officer (Pages 15 - 
22)

6.2  Chief Social Work Officer Annual 
Report

Chief Social 
Work Officer

(Pages 23 - 
58)

6.3  Monitoring of the Integration Joint 
Budget 2019/20

Interim Chief 
Financial Officer

Public Document Pack



6.4  Quarterly Performance Report Programme 
Manager

(Pages 59 - 
78)

6.5  Strategic Planning Group Update Chair (Pages 79 - 
80)

11:55 7 ANY OTHER BUSINESS Chair

12:00 8 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT 
MEETING
Wednesday 22 January 2020 at 
10.00am in Committee Rooms 2 & 
3, Scottish Borders Council.

Chair



 

Page 1 of 7 

 
 

  

 

Minutes of a meeting of the Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board held on 
Wednesday 30 October 2019 at 10.00am in the Council Chamber, Scottish Borders Council. 

 
Present:   (v) Dr S Mather (Chair)  (v) Cllr J Greenwell   
    (v) Mr M Dickson  (v) Cllr S Haslam 
    (v) Cllr T Weatherston (v) Mrs K Hamilton 
     (v) Cllr E Thornton-Nicol (v) Mr J McLaren 

Mr R McCulloch-Graham Dr T Patterson   
 Mr S Easingwood  Ms Linda Jackson 

    Dr C Sharp    Dr K Buchan    
    Mrs N Berry   Mr M Porteous   
    Miss V Macpherson  Mrs J Smith    
    Mr D Bell    
 
     
In Attendance:  Mr R Roberts   Mrs C Gillie    
    Mr D Robertson  Ms S Bell    
    Miss L Ramage  Mr M Leys    
    Mr G Clinkscale  Mr M Curran 
    Ms S Pratt   Ms Fiona Doig 
    Ms Susan Elliott  
 
1. Apologies and Announcements 
 
Apologies had been received from Cllr David Parker, Mrs Tracey Logan, Miss Iris Bishop and 
Mr Tris Taylor. 
 
The Chair confirmed the meeting was quorate. 
 
The Chair welcomed members of the public to the meeting.   
 
2. Declarations of Interests 
 
The Chair sought any verbal declarations of interest pertaining to items on the agenda. 
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD noted there were none. 
 
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting of the Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board (IJB) 
held on 25 September 2019 were approved.   
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

Page 2 of 7 

4. Matters Arising 
 
Nothing was raised.  
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD noted the action tracker. 
 
5. Winter Plan 2019/20  
 
Mr Gareth Clinkscale presented an overview of the Winter Plan for 2019/20 to be submitted to 
Scottish Government at the month end and advised members of the approach based on the 
previous year’s success. The winter communications strategy was also mentioned, across the 
platforms of social media and Radio Borders, utilising our clinicians to spread awareness of 
the best public use of services over the winter period.  
 
Cllr Shona Haslam asked for the high level plan in Appendix 1 to be amended to include an 
updated view of the progress with 3 different colours for ‘work commenced’, ‘work ongoing’ 
and ‘work completed’.  
 
Mrs Jenny Smith queried the lack of third sector involvement in the development of the plan, 
primarily from a community transport view. Mr Gareth Clinkscale and Mr Robert McCulloch-
Graham acknowledged the need for a more joined up approached and committed to liaise 
with the Red Cross and other Third Sector reps regarding what discharge support could be 
provided from 1 January 2020.  
 
Mr Malcolm Dickson praised the evidence of good work stretched out beyond winter and 
asked that the objectives on page 3 of the plan have reference to what/how each objective 
would be measured.  
 
Mr John McLaren asked who the plan had been shared with and if there was a plan to share 
wider. Mr Gareth Clinkscale clarified that the plan has been shared with: NHS Borders Acute 
Services Board, Board Executive Team, Local Partnership Forum, SBC Corporate 
Management Team and Health & Social Care Leadership Team.  
 
Mr John McLaren also advised that the staff wellbeing and morale element was lacking 
compared to previous years and that reduced sickness absence should not solely be used as 
an indicator. Mr Gareth Clinkscale advised that staff ‘Wellbeing Wednesdays’ will continue 
this coming year.  
 
Dr Kevin Buchan advised that the engagement with primary care had been scant, despite 
various offers of initiatives to improve patient flow, and therefore the plan remained secondary 
care based. Mr Robert McCulloch-Graham accepted the lack of engagement with primary 
care colleagues and committed to increase involvement all year round.  
 
Mrs Linda Jackson asked that reference patient and carer experience/data was included on 
page 3, as a measurement of objective delivery.  
 
Mr John McLaren acknowledged the clear improvement in partnership working across Health 
& Social Care however further planning work is required to meet all engagement opportunities 
across social care, acute service and community services. 

Page 4



 

Page 3 of 7 

 
Dr Cliff Sharp supported the winter plan and asked that future conversations should be 
broadened to incorporate the difference between need and demand for services. 
 
Mrs Karen Hamilton advised that Mr Tris Taylor had passed on queries for consideration, due 
to his absence from the meeting. Mr Rob McCulloch-Graham advised that officers will take 
forward the queries outwith the meeting.  
 
Mrs Nicky Berry provided further context of the plan, where responsibility sat with herself and 
Mr Rob McCulloch-Graham, whereas Mr Gareth Clinkscale coordinated the plan development 
of the behalf of the executive leads. Mrs Nicky Berry added that the membership of the Winter 
Planning Board could be revised to ensure robust early engagement. 
 
Mr Gareth Clinkscale added that the Site & Capacity team within the BGH continue to meet 
twice a day, with additional weekend planning, to ensure the delivery of safe and effective 
care. Mr Rob McCulloch-Graham added that weekly meetings had also been set up to 
monitor delayed discharge performance.  
 
The Chair thanked colleagues across the Health & Social Care Partnership for their 
contributions in producing the plan.  
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD approved the Joint Winter 
Plan 201/20. 
 
6. Physical Disability Strategy  
 
Mr Murray Leys provided an overview of the strategy, which included ambitions for fairer 
opportunities to participate in community life in the Borders. Assurance of a full and engaged 
consultation process during the development of the strategy was provided. Mr Murray Leys 
thanked Mr Michael Curran for his work on developing the strategy and carrying out the 
consultation. 
 
All IJB members commended the easy read strategy and the thorough engagement with 
service users and third sector colleagues.  
 
Cllr Shona Haslam noted the reference to Ability Borders as part of the engagement approach 
and asked that additional third sector organisations also be involved, alongside Ability 
Borders. Cllr John Greenwell also asked for engagement with community transport 
colleagues.  
 
Mr Ralph Roberts advised it would be good to receive and update on the implementation 
timescales and baselines for success measures. Mr Murray Leys advised the planning group 
were undertaking these tasks, particularly an outline of a resource model for strategy 
implementation, and any updates would be brought back to the IJB as required.   
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD approved the Physical 
Disability Strategy and Delivery Plan. 
 
 

Page 5



 

Page 4 of 7 

7. Board Meeting Dates and Business Cycle  
 
Miss Louise Ramage provided an overview of the meeting cycle for the forthcoming year.  
  
Cllr Tom Weatherston asked if the proposed June 2020 and December 2020 meeting dates 
could be rearranged to ensure the attendance of Mrs Jill Stacey, from an audit perspective. 
Mr Rob McCulloch-Graham advised that it would not be possible to move those dates as the 
cycle works around voting members diary, however a discussion with Mrs Jill Stacey would 
be arranged to review working pattern. 
 
Cllr Shona Haslam advised of a few references to 2019 which should be amended to 2020.  
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD approved the proposed 
meeting dates and business cycle for 2020. 
 
8. Primary Care Improvement Plan Update  
 
Ms Sandra Pratt and Dr Kevin Buchan provided an overview of the report and updated 
Primary Care Improvement Plan (PCIP), as a core element of the new General Medical 
Services contract. Members were advised that concerns had previously been raised around 
the pace of the PCIP and therefore a GP Executive Committee had been introduced in April 
2019, along with a project manager, to advance progress through a robust framework across 
all workstreams.  
 
Ms Sandra Pratt advised that regular submissions are made to Scottish Government to 
enable the release of funding allocations. 
 
Dr Kevin Buchan advised that Borders has shown good progress and is no longer lagging 
behind other boards, 18 months into implementation. Members acknowledged the key work 
undertaken.  
 
Mr John McLaren asked if there was confidence on the recruitment of physiotherapists 
without disrupting core service to which Dr Kevin Buchan advised this would be a risk.  
 
Mr John McLaren requested a similar update be presented to the Area Partnership Forum.   
 
Mrs Jenny Smith advised that the third sector could assist with accommodation requests. 
 
Cllr Elaine Thornton-Nicol suggested difficulties may be encountered in terms of IT 
infrastructure and data sharing to which Dr Kevin Buchan agreed as a challenge, however not 
a quick fix.  
 
Mr Malcolm Dickson asked if the IJB could be of any further help to assist in the progress of 
the PCIP.  Dr Kevin Buchan welcomed the offer but advised that GPs in the Borders have 
little capacity and therefore freeing up time remained difficult.  
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD noted and supported the 
information and progress to date of the PCIP as outlined and contained within the revised 
PCIP document. 

Page 6



 

Page 5 of 7 

The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD supported the submission of 
the revised PCIP document to Scottish Government. 
 
9. Financial Outlook Update  
 
Mrs Carol Gillie provided a verbal update on the NHS Borders financial position, as presented 
to the NHS Borders Board on 3 October 2019. At August 2019 month end, a £300k 
overspend was reported following key pressures in Emergency Department staffing and 
savings shortfall in IJB delegated services. The year-end forecast remained a breakeven 
position, with receipt of £9.3m brokerage. NHS Borders remain on course to deliver £7.1m 
savings on a recurring basis. Members were reminded that there is no clarification yet on any 
pay back arrangements for brokerage. 
 
Mr David Robertson provided a verbal update on the Scottish Borders Council financial 
position. As reported in September 2019, risks associated with IJB delegated services were 
projected in the quarter one balance. Members were advised that these risks had crystallised 
as financial pressures in home care and Learning Disabilities services, where management 
colleagues were now undertaking an analysis to quantify the drivers behind these pressures 
and implement mitigating actions. Mr David Robertson advised that the forthcoming formal 
report would give more clarity on pressures. 
 
The Chair asked for an indication of the overspend figure. Mr David Robertson advised no 
formal information was available, but estimated it would be a seven figure sum.  
 
The Chair asked that both Directors of Finance from NHS Borders and Scottish Borders 
Council present, to the IJB in December 2019, the actual financial position as at quarter 2 and 
provide an indicative quarter 3 position. 
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD noted the updates. 
 
10. Joint Financial Plan – Assumptions 2020/21  
 
Mr Mike Porteous provided an overview of the report which focused on the Joint Financial Plan 
(FP) for 2020/21 and highlighted the intention to present a medium term (3 years) Joint FP in 
future papers. A more detailed discussion would ensure at the IJB Development Session. The 
draft financial plan is scheduled to be presented to the IJB in January 2020, with the final report to 
be presented in March 2020.  
 
Members were advised that joint planning would continue whilst final budget positions were 
confirmed from Scottish Government. Additionally, a joint finance session would be planned for 
January 2020.  

 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD noted the budget planning 
assumptions being made for the 2020/21 Financial Planning process. 
 
11.  Inspections Update  
 
Mr Murray Leys advised that Care Inspectorate inspectors would be on site week 
commencing 25 November 2019 to attend various meetings and workshops, as part of the 

Page 7



 

Page 6 of 7 

review of the 2017 report on the ‘Joint Inspection of Adult Health and Social Care Services’ 
and the subsequent recommendations. 
 
Members were informed that the inspectors would be observing the forthcoming IJB 
Development Session and Strategic Planning Group meeting.  
 
A full briefing note, providing an update and the result of the inspection review would be 
brought back to the IJB in the New Year.  
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD noted the update. 
 
12. Alcohol and Drugs Partnership Update 
 
Dr Tim Patterson, Ms Fiona Doig and Ms Susan Elliot provided an overview of the report, as 
part of the bi-annual reporting structure. Members were advised that drug deaths were a main 
feature of the report as a high public health priority due to the tragic increase across Scotland 
and locally; 22 deaths last year at the average age of 35. Scottish Government had released 
funding to IJBs via Alcohol and Drugs Partnerships to introduce services and outreach 
programs to reduce drug related deaths.  
 
Cllr John Greenwell commented on the efficient inter-agency working alongside the Public 
Protection Service and Criminal Justice team, as well as the whole family engagement in the 
assessment of needs.  
 
Cllr Tom Weatherston welcomed the update and acknowledged the need to reduce stigma 
attached to those affected by alcohol and drug addictions. Dr Tim Patterson advised that 
various communication approaches are being taken with the public on reducing stigma.  
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD noted the update report.  
 
13. Any Other Business 
 
Mr Malcolm Dickson asked if, in light of the Audit Scotland latest report on Health & Social 
Care Partnerships across Scotland published this week, the IJB should take action to ensure 
the lessons learned were locally relevant and adjust local improvement plans accordingly. 
The Chair agreed that the exercise would be delegated to the IJB Audit Committee to take 
forward.  
 
Mr Rob McCulloch-Graham advised members that an IJB Development Session would be 
held on Wednesday 20 November 2019, 10am to 12pm. The Care Inspectorate had advised 
their intention to observe the session and had also requested a 20 minute focus group with 
voting members only. Mr Rob McCulloch-Graham suggested the agenda run as follows and 
any items deferred would be picked up during the first IJB Development Session in 2020: 

 Public Protection Service; 

 Demographics; 

 History of demands on delegated services; 

 Forthcoming pressures; 

 Financial resources. 

Page 8



 

Page 7 of 7 

 
Cllr Tom Weatherston queried the permanent membership of the IJB Audit Committee since 
the resignation of John Raine. The Chair advised that Mrs Karen Hamilton had been 
appointed to sit on the IJB Audit Committee.   
 
The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD noted the items.  
 
14. Date and Time of next meeting 
 
The Chair confirmed that the next meeting of Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board 
would take place on Tuesday 17 December 2019 at 10am in Council Chamber, Scottish 
Borders Council. 
 
The meeting concluded at 11.55am  
 
 
Signature: …………………………… 
Chair 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board Action Point Tracker 
 
 
Meeting held 28 May 2018 
 
Agenda Item:  Chief Officer’s Report 
 

Action 
Number 

Reference 
in Minutes 

Action Action by: Timescale Progress  RAG 
Status 

30 6 Mr Murray Leys to provide a 
presentation to a future Development 
session on Demographics 

Stuart 
Easingwood 

November 
2019 

In Progress: Item scheduled 
for 19 November 2018. 
 
Update:  Session cancelled.  
Item rescheduled to 25 
November 2019 
Development session. 

R

 

 
Meeting held 8 May 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Primary Care Improvement Plan (April 2019-March 2020) 
 

Action 
Number 

Reference 
in Minutes 

Action Action by: Timescale Progress  RAG 
Status 

8 7 The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE 
INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD agreed 
that a future Development session be 
led by service users and primary care 
leads in regard to long term conditions. 

Rob 
McCulloch- 
Graham, 
Erica Reid 

November 
2019 

In Progress:  Item added to 
November Development 
session schedule. 

R

 

 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4



Page 2 of 3 

Meeting held 19 June 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Chief Officer’s Report 
 

Action 
Number 

Reference 
in Minutes 

Action Action by: Timescale Progress  RAG 
Status 

11 5 The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE 
INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD agreed 
to remove the Chief Officer’s Report as 
a standing item on the agenda and 
instead to receive a newsletter format 
report on a monthly basis to also include 
what was happening around the 
partnerships across Scotland.   

Louise 
Ramage 

October 
2019 

Communications colleagues 
across NHS Borders and 
SBC to support newsletter.  
 
Update: capacity in NHS 
Borders is still challenged 
due to priorities of 
turnaround. Will look to 
provide a newsletter every 
two months. 

 

 
 
Agenda Item:  Integration Joint Board 2019/20 Financial Plan 
 

Action 
Number 

Reference 
in Minutes 

Action Action by: Timescale Progress  RAG 
Status 

13 8 The HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE 
INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD directed 
the IJB Officers to continue to work with 
NHS Borders and SBC to develop a 
Joint Turnaround Programme and a 
Joint Financial Recovery Plan to 
address the financial gap and mitigate 
the risks relating to Health and Social 
Care services.   

Mike 
Porteous 

Note until 
March 
2020 

Update: Financial 
implications of the strategic 
plan will be discussed at the 
November development 
session. Additional Joint 
Finance Sessions to be 
arranged over the next few 
months to inform partners of 
necessary updates during the 
budget setting process. 
 

G

 

 
 
 

P
age 12



Page 3 of 3 

Meeting held 25 September 2019 
 
Agenda Item:  Transformation Fund Review 
 

Action 
Number 

Reference 
in Minutes 

Action Action by: Timescale Progress  RAG 
Status 

14 6 Mr Rob McCulloch-Graham to provide 
an update on a delayed discharge 
trajectory. 

Rob 
McCulloch-
Graham 

December 
2019 

 
A

 

 
 

 KEY: 

R

 

Overdue / timescale TBA 

A

 

<2 weeks to timescale 

G

 

>2 weeks to timescale 

Blue Complete – Items removed from action tracker 
once noted as complete at each H&SC Integration 
Joint Board meeting 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 1 of 12 

 
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care  
Integration Joint Board 
 
Meeting Date: 17 December 2019 

  

 

Report By Rob McCulloch-Graham, Chief Officer Health & Social Care 

Contact Mike Porteous, Chief Financial Officer 

Telephone: 07973981394 

 

2019/20 BUDGETS PRESSURES AND PROPOSALS TO DELIVER YEAR END 
FINANCIAL BALANCE 

 

Purpose of Report: 
 

This report provides the Integrated Joint Board (IJB) with an 
outline of the current forecast gap in the financial position of the 
Health & Social Care Partnership (H&SCP) for 2019/20, and sets 
out the mitigating actions taken and further action recommended 
to reach financial balance. 

 

Recommendations: 
 

The Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board is asked to: 
 
(a) Note the forecast financial overspend of (£2.093m) for the 

H&SCP for 2019/20 based on information to 30th 
September; 

 
(b) Note the Chair and Vice Chair’s Action taken on 29th 

November to utilise £300k  of the remaining Transformation 
funding to commission additional Residential and Nursing 
Care beds and Packages of Care in the Community; 

 
(c) Agree the utilisation of the remaining in year 

Transformation funds of £0.404m and £0.124m of Mental 
Health release to address the forecast overspend in the 
Social Care services within IJB delegated functions 

 
(d) Note that this will allow ongoing access to residential & 

nursing care home provision and homecare from private 
providers, in addition to the provision provided from SB 
Cares, until 31 March 2020; 

 
(e) Note the risks identified in relation to the recommendations 

in this paper linked to patient safety and the impact on the 
discharge programme going forward; 

 
(f) Note the underlying issues highlighted in the report and the 

need to ensure recurring solutions are developed as part of 
the Joint Financial Planning process for 2020/21 to address 
year on year overspends and ongoing demographic 
pressures;  

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5a



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 2 of 12 

(g) Agree that the IJB receives regular monthly forecasts of the 
financial position with information on savings programmes 
across the Partnership from now on. 

 
(h) Agree to implement the Recovery Plan actions identified to 

address the remaining gap within services commissioned 
from the Council. 

 
(i) Note that once the use of the Transformation and other 

funds identified in (c) above are allocated any further in year 
pressures will require to be addressed by the respective 
Partner.  

 

 

Personnel: 
 

There are no resourcing implications beyond the financial 
resources identified within the report. Any significant resource 
impact beyond those identified in the report that may arise during 
2019/20 will be reported to the Integration Joint Board 

 

Carers: 
 

N/A 

 

Equalities: 
 

There are no equalities impacts arising from the report. 

 

Financial: 
 

No resourcing implications beyond the financial resources 
identified within the report. 
 
Both partner organisations’ Finance functions have contributed to 
the development of this report and will work closely with IJB 
officers in delivering its outcomes. 

 

Legal: 
 

Supports the delivery of the Strategic Plan and is in compliance 
with the Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Act 2014 and 
any consequential Regulations, Orders, Directions and Guidance.  

 

Risk Implications: 
 

To be reviewed in line with agreed risk management strategy. 
The key risks outlined in the report form part of the draft financial 
risk register for the partnership. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 3 of 12 

1 BUDGET 2019/20 
 

 1.1  The H&SCP has identified pressures of (£13.074m) across the Partnership in 
year. The impact of various actions and decisions has brought the forecast gap 
down significantly to (£2.093m). The table below summarises the forecast 
overspend by service for 2019/20.  

 
Scottish Borders Council

Original Mid 

Year Forecast Virement Brokerage

Operational 

Actions

Winter 

Plan

Final 

Forecast

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Learning Disabilities (0.490) 0.325 0.165 0.000

Older People (1.623) 0.391 0.307 (0.925)

Mental Health (0.131) 0.131 0.000

Physical Disabilities (0.165) 0.165 0.000

Generic Services (0.464) 0.464 0.000

(2.873) 1.476 0.000 0.472 0.000 (0.925)

NHS Borders

Mental Health (1.191) 0.513 0.818 0.140

Primary and Community 

Health Services (incl LD) (5.520) 2.057 3.277 0.107 (0.079)

Set Aside (3.442) 0.585 0.933 0.695 (1.229)

Other (0.048) 0.048 0

(10.201) 3.155 5.028 0.000 0.850 (1.168)

TOTAL (13.074) 4.631 5.028 0.472 0.850 (2.093)

Mitigating Action

 
   

1.2 The allocation of a combination of Scottish Government Brokerage, internal 
virement and mitigating actions  across Health Business Units has reduced the 
in year gap by circa £9m for the H&SC Partnership. Increased controls around 
all areas of spend have been put in place including a revised vacancy process 
and weekly scrutiny of supplies costs. A significant number of non recurring 
measures are being progressed which include the use of the Board’s capital 
funds to support revenue pressures. Within Council services additional non 
recurring flexibility totalling £1.476m has been identified and vired from other 
Business Units. In addition a range of operational actions have been put in 
place by the Council which are expected to reduce the forecast overspend by 
£0.472m. Appendix 1 provides details of the actions identified and their 
expected financial impact.  

  
1.3 The impact of these non recurring adjustments have improved the in year 

position substantially, however an overspend of (£2.093m) is currently still 
forecast.  

 
2 UNDERLYING AND IN YEAR PRESSURES 
  
 2.1 Over the last 3 financial years the Partner bodies have been required to make 

additional allocations to the H&SCP during or at year end to ensure a balanced 
financial position is reported for each year. This requirement is set out in the 
Scheme of Integration (SoI) which both Partners have agreed. The table below 

Page 17



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 4 of 12 

summarises the additional resources and level of support provided over the last 
3 years. These additional allocations were made to address in year and 
recurring pressures, including undelivered savings, within the delegated 
budgets.  

 
Summary of Additional Recurring Resources and Other Financial Support 2016/17 - 2018/19

NHSB SBC NHSB SBC NHSB SBC

Additional Recurring Resources £m £m £m £m £m £m

Uplift 3.711 2.086 0.259 1.538 2.934

Social Care Fund (Pass through) 3.500 2.635 1.262

Transformation Fund 2.130

Total Additional Resources 9.341 2.086 2.635 0.259 2.800 2.934

Additional Non Recurring Support

General 7.820 0.052 7.305 0.757 6.625 1.709

Social Care Fund 1.177 0.590 1.000 0.285

Integrated Care Fund 0.443

Additional Recurring Support 0.154 1.171

Total Additional Support 8.997 0.642 8.305 1.639 6.625 2.880

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

 
 
3       FINANCIAL PRESSURES  

 
 3.1 Since 2016/17 the Partnership has been dealing with a range of financial 

pressures. Additional funding in the form of NHS ring-fenced funding for Social 
Care was allocated by the Scottish Government and passed through the Health 
Board to fund increasing costs in Social Care including the Scottish Living 
Wage, and the implications of The Carers Act. A summary of the spend is set 
out in the table below. 

 

Social Care Fund Recurring Allcations

£'000

Scottish Living Wage 2,455

Demographic Pressures 3,220

Market Provider costs 1,722

7,397
 

  In year slippage in the first 2 years of its allocation facilitated non recurring 
support to be directed to NHS bed pressures which correlated with increases in 
delayed discharge occupied bed days, and Community Equipment Store 
demand.  

 
 3.2 The year on year requirement for additional support also reflects underlying 

recurring pressures and in year one off issues across Business Units (BU). The 
main pressures resulting in a forecast overspend are summarised by BU below: 

 
  Older People 

 Increasing requirement for Homecare both in the number of new clients 
and the level of package provided for existing clients  

 Demography driven increases in the requirement for residential and / or 
nursing care beds 

Page 18



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 5 of 12 

 
  Learning Disabilities 

 Changes in service user requirements – eg patient in external provider 
placement could become unstable requiring hospitalisation of a higher 
level of care 

 Number and requirement of clients transitioning from Children’s services 
to Adult services and the resultant cost 

 Complexity of need and entitlement of clients 
  
  Prescribing 

 The impact of short supply on the availability of drugs.  

 Demography driven pressures on prescribing costs. 
   
  Set Aside 

 The use of unfunded surge beds beyond the winter period 

 Recruitment and retention of skilled staff, including medical staff, 
requiring the use of agency staff 

 Patient safety requirements impacting on the use of agency staff.  
 
  Savings Targets 

 The failure to identify and deliver recurring savings against historical and 
in year targets is a significant pressure across the Partnership. 

 Slippage in delivery is also an underlying driver of the overspend 
positions reported each year.  

 
3.3 The main drivers of the forecast overspend for 2019/20 are: 

 A gradual rise in the number of clients requiring residential and nursing 
care beds. The number of beds commissioned each month varies, 
however a steady rise over the last 6 months has resulted in an additional 
30 beds being commissioned in September compared to April at a cost of 
£0.675m per annum. Appendix 2 shows the number of beds 
commissioned over the last 3 years based on a monthly measure 

 The number of people requiring Homecare and the size of package 
required have risen over the last 12-18 months. The average package 
has increased from 7 hours to 8 hours, putting added pressure on the 
service. 

 The overspend within IJB services commissioned from Health falls 
entirely within Set Aside services. The opening of surge beds beyond the 
winter period has contributed to staffing pressures. This has been 
compounded by the ongoing patients who have been delayed in hospital 
once they are medically fit for discharge. The use of bank and agency 
staff to cover the beds as well as nursing and medical vacancies and 
higher than planned sickness absence are all a consequence of the 
above. 

 
4  ONGOING ACTIONS 
 

4.1 Both Partners have introduced formal savings programmes to address the 
financial challenges across their organisations. The Turnaround Programme in 
NHS Borders and FitFor2024 within SBC are bringing stronger governance and 
focus to identifying transformational programmes of change. Delivery of savings 

Page 19



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 6 of 12 

will now be monitored through the monthly meetings of the IJB Leadership 
Group in the future 

 
4.2 In addition, the commitment to Joint Financial Planning for 2020/21 will ensure a 

shared understanding of the pressures anticipated within Partner services and 
facilitate discussions around the investment required to deliver sustainable 
services within the funding available. 

 
4.3  Future planning will continue to refine annual demographic growth analysis and 

greater monitoring and reporting of in year operational performance against 
additional funding received. 

 
5 PROPOSAL TO ADDRESS IN YEAR OVERSPEND 

 
 5.1 The H&SC Partnership is forecasting an in year overspend of (£2.093m) as 

highlighted in section 1 of this report. Both Partners have already made non 
recurring contributions to their financial positions to bring the overspend down to 
this level. Within NHS Borders this has been managed through a mix of 
virement and non recurring winter funding totalling £4.005m and a Scottish 
Government loan in the form of Brokerage contributing £5.028m to the IJB. It 
should be noted that the Brokerage is expected to be paid back to the Scottish 
Government when the Health Board returns to financial balance.  

   
 5.2 NHSB have confirmed the remaining forecast overspend of (£1.168m) within 

the commissioned Health services will be covered within their overall forecast 
year end position through the allocations of additional funding to the IJB. This 
will be delivered as a result of efficiencies and operational actions both within 
the delegated functions and elsewhere in the Health system.   

 
 5.3 SBC has identified £1.476m of savings in other budgets and £0.472m of 

operational actions to support the H&SCP but is unable to identify the remaining 
(£0.925m) required to deliver a balanced outturn. The Council is consequently 
seeking additional financial support from the IJB.  

 
 5.4 Legislation states that the following options exist to address an overspend prior 

to the year end: 
 

a) The IJB can utilise the balance on it’s Reserves.    
b) The IJB can utilise an underspend elsewhere in the Partnership 

 
  The IJB has to date not been able to generate Reserves.  There are however 

uncommitted balances elsewhere within the Partnership which this paper seeks 
to utilise.  

  
6 Use of Transformation Funds and Other Specific Sources of Funding 
 
 6.1 A paper was submitted to a recent Corporate Management Team meeting 

within the Council and then to the Executive Management Group by Council 
colleagues requesting the Chief Officer bring a paper to the IJB seeking 
approval to utilise specific currently uncommitted funding streams held by the 
Partnership. The table below sets out the sources of funding specified, the 
balances available and the additional contributions requested to support the 

Page 20



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 7 of 12 

projected overspend within Social Care. It should be noted that the Chair and 
Vice Chair, under delegated authority, have previously taken action to release 
£0.300m of Transformation fund to ensure that care packages continue to be 
provided and patient safety is not compromised while a financial recovery plan 
is agreed. The table below shows a remaining uncommitted balance of £0.528m 
which, if utilised by the IJB, would leave a residual in year pressure requiring 
further management action within the Council of (£0.097m). 

 

Funding Source Summary 2019/20

Source Status

Available 

Balance

Contribution 

Requested

Chair's 

Action

Remaining 

Council Gap

Remaining 

Available 

Balance

£m £m £m £m £m

Transformation Fund Balance remaining in 2019/20 0.704 0.675 (0.300) 0.375 0.404

Mental Health Savings

Reduction in bed base from 18 

November 2019 0.124 0.150 0.150 0.124

Medicine of Elderly Bed base redesign 0 0.100 0.100

0.828 0.925 (0.300) 0.625 0.528
 

 

 6.2 The Transformation fund is the recurring source of funding available to the IJB 
to invest in strategic and operational change across the Partnership. Following 
action agreed by the Chair and Vice Chair the H&SC Partnership is forecasting 
an uncommitted balance of £0.404m for 2019/20. In the past any uncommitted 
balance has been carried forward as part of the year end process within the 
Council on behalf of the IJB and is made available for future investment. 

 
 6.3 It is not without precedent to utilise uncommitted recurring funding sources to 

address in year pressures. The analysis in paragraph 2.1 shows that 
contributions from the Social Care Fund and ICF were previously utilised to fund 
surge bed pressures including Delayed Discharges across the system, 
Prescribing pressures within NHSB, and an overspend within the Community 
Equipment Store. It should be noted that using Transformation funding to 
address existing pressures will reduce the funding available for the existing 
projects and new developments in the future.   The Transformation fund 
currently funds the Discharge Programme (* see below) of services across the 
Partnership which has full year costs of £2.9m.  

 
 6.4 The Programme will be evaluated as part of the joint budget setting process for 

2020/21 and the IJB will be asked to make decisions on ongoing funding for 
these services. The funding available for 2020/21 if the recommendations in this 
report are agreed will be £2.13m. Any shortfall in the funding requirement 
identified will have to be addressed as part of the 2020/21 Joint Financial 
Planning process or services will have to be reduced / redesigned as a 
consequence. 

 
 6.5 Clearly a decision to utilise the Transformation funds in 2019/20 would restrict 

the level of investment the IJB could fund in 2020/21. This in turn could impact 
on the planned pace of change, the delivery of future savings, and the 
subsequent investment in new and enhanced services across the Partnership.  

   
(* FY Costs - Hospital2Home £1.595m / Garden View £0.812m / Waverley £0.206m / Matching Unit 

£0.204m / Strata £0.115m) 

 

Page 21



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 8 of 12 

 6.6 The IJB will recall that following the redesign of Dementia assessment services 
in the BGH, an extended community service was developed with reinvestment 
from the resultant closure of 14 Adult Mental Health beds. As part of this 
redesign a fund of £0.338m has been agreed as a source of funding for 
additional Nursing care beds for dementia patients in the community should 
they be required. The criteria for the use of this funding have not been finalised 
yet and it was agreed that the use and need for this fund would be assessed 
during 2020. This saving was in addition to the reinvestment of a further 
£0.233m to fund the Community Health Assessment Team (CHAT). The saving 
has been implemented part way through 2019/20 and releases a fund for 
Nursing Care beds of £0.124m in this financial year which is now requested by 
the Council to support the care system.  

 
 6.7 The closure of DME beds within BGH was related to the eventual closure of 

winter surge beds that, because of pressures within the acute system were not 
closed until September 2019. The closure of these beds generated a small 
saving which is included in the NHSB savings forecast for 2019/20 and as such 
will contribute to NHS Borders ability to provide an additional allocation to the 
IJB at the year end.  

 
 6.8 Following the Chair and Vice Chair’s Action a balance of £0.528m made up of 

the Transformation fund £0.404m and the available Mental Health releases 
£0.124m remain uncommitted within the current year. 

 
7 Delivering Break Even 
 
 7.1 The SoI does not allow for an overspend within the IJB’s financial position at 

year end. It states: 
  “Where there is a forecast outturn overspend against an element of the 

operational budget the Chief Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Integration Joint Board must agree a recovery plan to balance the overspending 
budget with the relevant finance officer of the constituent authority. The 
recovery plan will need to be approved by the Integration Joint Board 

 
  Should the recovery plan be unsuccessful the Integration Joint Board may 

request that the payment from Borders Health Board and Scottish Borders 
Council be adjusted, to take account of any revised assumptions. It will be the 
responsibility of the authority who originally delegated the budget to make the 
additional payment to cover the shortfall” 

 
  It should be therefore noted that both the Council and NHSB are responsible for 

funding any residual overspend with their respective H&SC budgets. This 
assumes the IJB has however taken all reasonable steps to balance its budget 
whilst not compromising patient safety. 

   
  The following actions form the basis of a Financial Recovery Plan which sets 

out additional steps to be taken by the H&SC Partnership to close the residual 
gap: 

 Refocusing on the delivery of planned savings 

 Identifying new and / or accelerating future savings plans 

 Deferring staff recruitment 

 Reducing agency spend 

Page 22



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 9 of 12 

 Maximising the use of the Block contract 

 Exploring 3rd party charges 
  
 7.2 Should the implementation of the above Recovery actions not deliver a break 

even position at year end the IJB will request additional payments from the 
relevant Partner body. 

   
 7.3 In summary, following proactive action already taken by the Chair and Vice 

Chair, if the proposed utilisation of the remaining Transformation fund and 
Mental Health reserve balances totalling £0.528m is agreed and the further 
proposed actions are successfully implemented to address the remaining gap of 
£0.097m the H&SC Partnership will deliver a break even position.  

 
8 RISKS AND MITIGATION 
 

8.1 The SoI requires the IJB to deliver a break even position at the year end. Should 
the actions set out in this paper and the actions already being taken to control 
costs not deliver the required outcomes there is a risk that the Partnership will not 
break even at year end. This will require further contributions from the Partner 
bodies.  

 
8.2 There is a significant risk in the agreement of an in year funding solution that the 

recurrency of the pressures and undelivered savings driving the overspend 
continue. Managers and Budget Holders need to understand the recurrency of 
any decisions proposed before they are agreed. 

 
8.3 By utilising the remaining Transformation funding in 2019/20 the IJB will be 

unable to fund the current level of transformational change in 2020/21. There is a 
significant financial risk associated with this as commitments are already in place 
(eg staff with permanent contracts). The reduction in the level of resources 
available will impact on the delivery of current services and the potential 
opportunities in the future. Financial modelling on the financial risks have not 
been undertaken to date. It is essential therefore that the Joint Financial Planning 
process for 2020/21 and beyond ensures there is appropriate Transformation 
funding to support the level of change required by the Partnership.   

 
8.4 There is a risk that going forward the IJB is not sighted on the forecast impact of 

financial pressures at an early enough stage in their identification. The 
presentation of monthly financial monitoring reports will ensure they are aware of 
any potential financial problems at an early stage. 

 
8.5 There is a clear risk, as evidenced by the current pressures in the system, that if 

the additional funding requested is not provided and services are restricted within 
current financial budgets, that there will  be significant patient safety issues in the 
system with increased delayed discharges, extended waiting times at the front 
door of the BGH and patients across the system experiencing longer length of 
stay in hospital than is required. In turn this will result in individuals requiring 
increased care needs in the longer term, with resultant increased costs for the 
whole system, as well as less positive outcomes for individuals. The funding 
requested from the IJB is designed to ensure the system can continue to operate 
throughout the remainder of the financial year while minimising risk to patient 
safety. 

Page 23



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 10 of 12 

9 CONCLUSIONS 
 
 9.1 Monitoring of the Partnership budget in 2019/20 has highlighted the requirement 

for additional resources to be provided to support the care system over the 
remainder of the financial year. Uncommitted budgets totalling £0.528m have 
been identified within the Transformation and other funds which will help to 
bridge the financial gap.  Precedent exists for the direction of such uncommitted 
funds to address in year pressures. The use of funding is not however without 
consequence, with significant potential impact on the discharge programme 
going forward. The implications of this recommended action will have to be 
addressed as part of the budget planning process for 2020/21 and beyond.  The 
action proposed is designed to ensure that safety is not compromised and that 
the system can continue to operate for the remainder of the financial year.  

 
 9.2 Work must continue to address the recurrency of the financial pressures and 

underdelivery of savings to ensure the IJB commissioned services manage their 
spend within budget and deliver their savings recurringly. This will be best 
progressed by all parties working closely together. 

 
9.3 Discussions should take place on the joint priorities for the Partnership and the 

agreed pace of change. The outcome of these discussions should be reflected 
in the Joint Financial Plan.  

  
 9.4 There is a need to ensure that the IJB receives monthly financial monitoring 

reports to ensure up to date awareness of the challenges and solutions facing 
service delivery. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 11 of 12 

APPENDIX 1

Mitigating Actions to Address the Forecast Overspend

£'000

75

40

40

120

7

25

307

Review of packages (Expenditure) 125

Review of client FPC and reinstate FRC 40

165

TOTAL 472

Use equipment double handed care packages to single

Joint Learning Disabilities

Older Peoples Services

Hospital to Home reable identified social care packages

Complete Discharge Hub review and cease START agency

Technology Medication Prompts replacing Homecare

Review small Homecare Packages (<4 hours per week)

More robustly enforce charge on Flat 24 Cornmill Court

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             
 

Page 25



Appendix-2019-55 

Page 12 of 12 

APPENDIX 2 
 

Social Care Beds – July 2016 to December 2019 
 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Ju
l-

1
6

Se
p

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

Ja
n

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
l-

1
7

Se
p

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7

Ja
n

-1
8

M
ar

-1
8

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
l-

1
8

Se
p

-1
8

N
o

v-
1

8

Ja
n

-1
9

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-

1
9

Se
p

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

Residential Care Beds

Nursing Care Beds

Total Beds

 
 
 
 
 
NHS Borders Beds – July 2016 to December 2019 
 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Ju
l-

1
6

A
u

g-
1

6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

D
e

c-
1

6

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n

-1
7

Ju
l-

1
7

A
u

g-
1

7

Se
p

-1
7

O
ct

-1
7

N
o

v-
1

7

D
e

c-
1

7

Ja
n

-1
8

Fe
b

-1
8

M
ar

-1
8

A
p

r-
1

8

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
n

-1
8

Ju
l-

1
8

A
u

g-
1

8

Se
p

-1
8

O
ct

-1
8

N
o

v-
1

8

D
e

c-
1

8

Ja
n

-1
9

Fe
b

-1
9

M
ar

-1
9

A
p

r-
1

9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

Ju
l-

1
9

A
u

g-
1

9

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
e

c-
1

9

BGH

Community Hospitals

Mental Health

NHS Borders Total

 

Page 26



Attachment 2                 Appendix-2019-55 

Executive Summary  
Health and Social Care 2019/20 Budget Pressures 

 
Background 

 Health & Social Care Partnership are forecasting an overspend of 
(£2.093m) to 31 March 2020. 

 Scheme of Integration states that IJB may request additional allocations 

from Partner bodies at the year end to cover any gap. 
 NHS Borders have indicated they are able to make an additional 

allocation at the year end to cover the forecast gap in their services of 
(£1.168m) 

 SB Council are forecasting an in year gap of (£0.925m) which they are 

unable to cover at the year end and are requesting support from IJB 
funds 

 
To note 

Under “Chair and Vice Chair’s Action” approval was given on 29th November to 

allocate £0.300m of uncommitted Transformation Funds to ensure that care 
beds and packages of care could continue to be commissioned from the private 

sector. This agreement is in place until December 31st 2019. 

Following this allocation there remains a residual gap of (£0.625m) within 

Council H&SC services.  

 
Request 

IJB approval is sought to partly address the residual gap by agreeing to 
 

a) allocate the remaining uncommitted balance on the Transformation fund 
of £0.404m  

b) allocate the in year release from the closure of Mental Health inpatient 

beds of £0.124m  

A Recovery Plan will be implemented across Social Care services to address the 

remaining gap of (£0.097m). 

The table below provides a summary of the above. 

 

Financial Summary Health Council Total

£m £m £m

Forecast in Year Overspend (1.168) (0.925) (2.093)

Chair & Vice Chair's Action

Transformation Fund 0.300 0.300

Recommendation for IJB Approval

Transformation Fund balance 0.404 0.404

Mental Health release 0.124 0.124

Remaining Forecast Gap (1.168) (0.097) (1.265)

Financial Recovery Plan / Additional Allocation 1.168 0.097 1.265

Year End Position 0.000 0.000 0.000

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix-2019-56 

Page 1 of 3 

 
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care  
Integration Joint Board 
 
Meeting Date: 17 December 2019  
 

  

 

Report By Rob McCulloch-Graham, Chief Officer Health & Social Care 

Contact Jill Stacey, SBIJB Chief Internal Auditor (Scottish Borders Council’s Chief 
Officer Audit & Risk) 

Telephone 01835 825036 

 

SCOTTISH BORDERS HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD 
BI-ANNUAL REVIEW OF RISK REGISTER 

 

Purpose of Report: 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide Members of the Board 
with an update of the most recent review of the IJB Strategic Risk 
Register as it is important that the Board is kept informed of the 
IJB’s key risks and the actions undertaken to manage these risks. 

 

Recommendations: 
 

The Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board is asked to: 

(a) Consider the IJB Strategic Risk Register to ensure it 
covers the key risks of the IJB; 

(b) Note the actions in progress to manage the risks; and 

(b) Note that a further risk update will be provided in June 
2020. 

 

 

Personnel: In line with the role and responsibilities, the IJB’s Chief Officer 
has carried out the current review of the IJB Strategic Risk 
Register on 4 December 2019, supported by SBC’s Corporate 
Risk Officer. 

 

Carers: There are no direct carers’ impacts arising from the report. 

 

Equalities: There are no equalities impacts arising from the report. 

 

Financial: 
 

There are no direct financial implications arising from the 
proposals in this report. 

 

Legal: 
 

Good governance will enable the IJB to pursue its vision 
effectively as well as underpinning that vision with mechanisms 
for control and management of risk. 

 

Risk Implications: 
 

Risk Management arrangements will assist the IJB making 
informed business decisions and provide options to deal with 
potential problems in line with its agreed Risk Management 
Strategy within its governance arrangements. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6a



Appendix-2019-56 

Page 2 of 3 

 
Background   
 
2.1 The IJB, as strategic commissioner of health and social care services, gives 

directions to NHS Borders and Scottish Borders Council for delivery of the services 
in line with the Strategic Plan. The Scheme of Integration sets out how the 
managerial arrangements across the integrated arrangements flow back to the IJB 
and the Chief Officer. These arrangements are further supported by the IJB’s Local 
Code of Corporate Governance.  

 
2.2 Compliance with the principles of good governance requires the IJB to adopt a 

coherent approach to the management of risks that it faces in the achievement of its 
strategic objectives. A Risk Management Strategy was approved by the IJB on 7 
March 2016 which includes the: reporting structure; types of risks to be reported; 
risk management framework and process; roles and responsibilities; and monitoring 
risk management activity and performance. 

 
2.3 The Internal Audit Annual Assurance Report 2018/19 for the Scottish Borders 

Health and Social Care Integration Joint Board highlighted that progress had been 
made in finalising the IJB Strategic Risk Register though further improvement was 
required to fully embed the process. The Internal Audit recommendation is “Ensure 
IJB strategic risks are considered and reviewed regularly at IJB meetings”. 

 
2.4 On the recommendation by the IJB Audit Committee (17 December 2018), the IJB 

Strategic Risk Register was approved by the full Board on 28 January 2019 with 
agreement that it reviews the IJB Strategic Risk Register on a six monthly basis i.e. 
June and December each year.  

 
2.5 The first of those six monthly risk review reports, representing the overview by the 

Chief Officer Health and Social Care of the IJB’s strategic risks and mitigations as at 
end July 2019, was presented to and discussed at the IJB full Board on 25 
September 2019 (item postponed from 14 August 2019). This is the second of those 
six monthly risk review reports, representing the overview by the Chief Officer 
Health and Social Care of the IJB’s strategic risks and mitigations as of 4 December 
2019. 

 
Summary 
 
3.1 It is important that the IJB has its own robust risk management arrangements in 

place because if objectives are defined without taking the risks into consideration, 
the chances are that direction will be lost should any of these risks materialise. The 
identification, evaluation, control and review of the IJB strategic risks is a 
Management responsibility. However, knowledge of the strategic risks faced by the 
IJB and associated mitigations will enable the Board members to be more informed 
when making business decisions. 

 
3.2 The most recent review by the IJB’s Chief Officer of the IJB Strategic Risk Register 

has taken place on 4 December 2019. The review was undertaken by the IJB’s 
Chief Officer in line with his role and responsibilities and was supported by SBC’s 
Corporate Risk Officer. 

 

Page 30



Appendix-2019-56 

Page 3 of 3 

3.3 A high level summary of the IJB’s Strategic Risk Register, which sets out the 
strategic risks associated with the achievement of objectives and priorities within the 
IJB’s Strategic Plan, is shown in Appendix 1. There are currently 10 risks on the IJB 
Strategic Risk Register; two Red and eight Amber rated risks. Further detail is 
shown on the Red rated risks in Appendix 2 to outline the current internal controls 
and further mitigation actions required to reduce the likelihood and/or the impact of 
the risk materialising.  

 
3.4 This report and the IJB Strategic Risk Register are intended to provide the Board 

with assurance that the strategic risks associated with the achievement of 
objectives and priorities within the IJB’s Strategic Plan are being effectively 
managed and monitored.  

 
3.5  Reliance is placed on the risk management arrangements within the partner 

organisations in respect of the operational delivery of commissioned services. As 
stated in the IJB Risk Management Strategy, any of these risks that significantly 
impact on the delivery of the IJB Strategic Plan will be escalated to the Chief Officer 
for consideration.  

 
3.6 The IJB Strategic Risk Register will continue to be reviewed alongside the 

implementation of the Strategic Plan by the IJB’s Chief Officer on a quarterly with 
support from SBC’s Corporate Risk Officer. A further update will be presented to the 
Board in June 2020 i.e. on a six monthly basis in line with the Audit Committee’s 
recommendation. This will assist to address the Internal Audit recommendation on 
managing risks that was made in 2018/19. 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix-2019-56 

1 

Attachment 1 - IJB Strategic Risk Register (Summary) 
 

04 December 2019 

 
Appendix 1  

 

Risk 
Code Risk Title Risk Description Risk Score Status Trend 

Last 
Review 
Date 

Risk 
Approach 

Update 

IJB001 Cultural change 

If the required change in culture is not achieved 
then the delivery of the Partnership's strategic 
objectives may be delayed or may not be fully 
met 

12 Major - 
Possible   

04-Dec-
2019 

Treat 

SBC Best value Audit incorporated the results of self-
evaluation - the subsequent action plan to address 
issues identified through self-evaluation will help 
mitigate this risk and has been added to Internal 
Controls. No change to scores. 

IJB002 Resources 
If we do not ensure that resource directed by the 
IJB is used efficiently and effectively then we may 
not achieve best value 

12 Moderate - 
Likely   

04-Dec-
2019 

Treat 

Internal Controls have been updated. New 
action/Control - IJB has directed NHS Borders, SBC and 
IJB CEOs and CFOs to produce a joint budget for 2021 
and the following 2 years - assigned to DOF SBC, NHS 
Borders, CFO IJB - March 31 2020 

IJB003 
Future market 
for care 

If the future market for care is insufficient to meet 
increasing demand then there may be gaps in 
service provision and poor outcomes/choices  

16 Major - 
Likely   

04-Dec-
2019 

Treat 

New Controls added - Work ongoing re commissioning 
of home care hours and residential care places; 
Strategic Implementation Plan Development Group; 
Queen's House Development. 

IJB004 
Stakeholder 
engagement 

If we do not ensure that we have a partnership 
approach when communicating and engaging with 
stakeholders then we may fail to get them to play 
their part in delivering the partnership's strategic 
objectives 

9 Moderate - 
Possible   

04-Dec-
2019 

Treat 
New Controls added - Locality Working Groups, terms 
of ref agreed due to start Jan 2020; CO regularly meets 
with third sector providers. 

IJB005 
Delegated 
Budget 

If both Partners do not sufficiently and rigorously 
plan and manage their Efficiency and Savings 
Programmes then the delegated budget may 
continue to overspend leading to inability to 
commission sufficient services to deliver the 
strategic objectives  

20 Major - 
Almost Certain   

04-Dec-
2019 

Treat 

Controls updated and new action/Control added - IJB 
has directed NHS Borders, SBC and IJB CO and CFO to 
produce a joint budget for 2021 and following 2 years - 
assigned to DOF SBC, NHS Borders, CFO IJB - March 31 
2020. Likelihood increased to 5 to reflect the current 
situation. 

IJB006 Workforce 

If we do not have a workforce fit for purpose now 

and in the future then the Partnership may fail to 
deliver on the strategic objectives leading to poor 
outcomes 

9 Moderate - 
Possible   

04-Dec-
2019 

Treat 

Control - GMS Contract changes from partially effective 
to fully effective. 
Work underway with Borders College for training for 
Care and Health support staff. 
 

P
age 33



Appendix-2019-56 

2 

Risk 
Code Risk Title Risk Description Risk Score Status Trend 

Last 
Review 
Date 

Risk 
Approach 

Update 

IJB007 Supplier failure 

If a significant supplier was unexpectedly unable 
to fulfil their contract then there may be a serious 
gap in service provision leading to risk of harm 
and reputational damage 

12 Major - 
Possible   

04-Dec-
2019 

Treat 
New Control added - Contract Management Group 
formed for SB Cares meets monthly. Commissioning 
Plan due 2020. 

IJB008 
Harm to service 
users 

If someone under the care of the IJB comes to 

harm because of a failure attributed to the 
Partners then this may result is significant 
reputational damage 

12 Major - 
Possible   

04-Dec-
2019 

Tolerate 
Risk is now TOLERATED as controls mitigate this risk as 
much as is possible. 

IJB009 
Programmes / 
projects 
management 

If we fail to manage and appropriately resource 
major programmes/projects undertaken 
simultaneously then we may be unable to achieve 
objectives 

9 Moderate - 
Possible   

04-Dec-
2019 

Treat 
SBC have provided programme support resource but 
NHS Borders are still to agree to provide support. 

IJB010 Data Breach 

If the Partners lose sensitive data or use data 
inappropriately then we may be in breach of data 
protection legislation resulting in fines and 
reputational damage 

6 Moderate - 
Unlikely   

04-Dec-
2019 

Tolerate 

Impact decreases from 4 to 3 as it is recognised that 
the financial implications of this risk would most likely 
sit with the partner organisation concerned. However, 
the IJB may be subject to scrutiny and reputational 
damage. 

 
  

P
age 34



Appendix-2019-56 

1 

Attachment 2 - IJB Strategic Risk Register (Red Risks) – 4 December 2019 
 

Appendix 2  

Risk Register Risk Code Risk Title Risk Description Risk Owner Risk Approach RAG Status 

IJB IJB003 Future market for care If the future market for care is insufficient to meet 

increasing demand then there may be gaps in service 

provision and poor outcomes/choices  

Robert McCulloch-

Graham Treat  

Latest Note Current Risk  Current Risk Score Date Reviewed Target Risk  Target Date Risk Trend 

New Controls added - Work ongoing re commissioning of home care hours and 

residential care places; Strategic Implementation Plan Development Group; 

Queen's House Development. 

 

16 Major - Likely 04-Dec-2019 

 

31-Jul-2020  

                        

Risk Factors/Causes Effects/Consequences Internal Controls 
Internal 

Controls Score 

Market may be unable to recruit and retain sufficient staff 

due to demographics - reduction in people of working age 

versus aging population;  

Higher wages and alternative career options;  

Less attractive T&C's;  

Lack of community capacity support;  

   

   

Gaps in service provision;  

Delayed discharge;  

Reduction in choice;  

Poor outcomes;  

Services may not be able to meet need;  

Unable to deliver our statutory duty.  

Work ongoing re commissioning of home care hours; Partially 

Effective 

Projection modelling on future demand v demographic 

pressures; 

Partially 

Effective 

Market Facilitation Plan Partially 

Effective 

Work ongoing re commissioning of home care hours and 

residential care places 

Partially 

Effective 

Strategic Implementation Plan Development Group Partially 

Effective 

Queen's House Development Fully Effective 

Linked 

Action Code 

Linked Action Assigned To Action Due Date Action Progress 
      

IJB Action 

003.1 

Market Facilitation Plan; Robert McCulloch-

Graham 

31-Jul-2020 
       

P
age 35



Appendix-2019-56 

2 

Risk Register Risk Code Risk Title Risk Description Risk Owner Risk Approach RAG Status 

IJB IJB005 Delegated Budget If both Partners do not sufficiently and rigorously plan and 

manage their Efficiency and Savings Programmes then the 

delegated budget may continue to overspend leading to 

inability to commission sufficient services to deliver the 

strategic objectives  

Robert McCulloch-

Graham 

Treat  

Latest Note Current Risk  Current Risk Score Date Reviewed Target Risk  Target Date Risk Trend 

Controls updated and new action/Control added - IJB has directed NHS Borders, 

SBC and IJB CO and CFO to produce a joint budget for 2021 and following 2 

years - assigned to DOF SBC, NHS Borders, CFO IJB - March 31 2020. Likelihood 

increased to 5 to reflect the current situation. 

 

20 Major - Almost 

Certain 
04-Dec-2019 

 

31-Mar-2021  

                        

Risk Factors/Causes Effects/Consequences Internal Controls 
Internal 

Controls Score 

Inability of the partners to resource the IJB to the levels 

required  

Lack of shared responsibility and accountability across the 

partnership for the prioritisation of resource to meet the 

strategic objectives of the IJB.  

Overspend position, unless subsequent direction made to 

reduce spend across delegated functions or partners 

identify alternative temporary or permanent investment or 

savings proposals;  

Responsibility of the partner who originally delegated the 

budget to cover the shortfall;  

Inability to commission sufficient services to deliver the 

strategic objectives;  

Increased waiting times;  

Delayed discharge;  

Poor outcomes.  

Transformation / Efficiency programme governance 

within NHSB and SBC; 

Partially 

Effective 

It will be the responsibility of the authority who originally 

delegated the budget to cover the shortfall; 

Fully Effective 

Regular financial reporting and monitoring at the Board Partially 

Effective 

Performance Group Fully Effective 

Joint Finance Group Partially 

Effective 

IJB has directed NHS Borders, SBC and IJB CO and CFO to 

produce a joint budget for 2021 and following 2 years 

Partially 

Effective 

Linked 

Action Code 

Linked Action Assigned To Action Due Date Action Progress 
      

IJB Action 

003 

Ongoing conversations with Scottish Govt re NHS funding; Robert McCulloch-

Graham 

31-Jan-2020 
       

IJB002 IJB has directed NHS Borders, SBC and IJB CEOs and CFOs to produce a joint budget for 

2021 and the following 2 years 

 31-Mar-2020 
     

 

P
age 36



Appendix-2019-57 

Page 1 of 3 

 
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care  
Integration Joint Board 
 
Meeting Date: 17 December 2019 

  

 

Report By Stuart Easingwood, Chief Social Work & Public Protection Officer 

Contact Stuart Easingwood, Chief Social Work & Public Protection Officer 

Telephone: 01835 824000 

 

 
CHIEF SOCIAL WORK OFFICER ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 

Purpose of Report: 
 

For the IJB to note the CSWO Annual Report 

 

Recommendations: 
 

The Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board is asked to: 
 

a) Note the report 
 

 

Personnel: There are no specific implications arising from this report. 

 

Carers: There are no specific implications arising from this report. 

 

Equalities: 
 

Social justice and quality are key values in Social Work and there 
are no adverse equality implications arising from the work 
contained in this report. 

 

Financial: There are no specific implications arising from this report. 

 

Legal: There are no specific implications arising from this report. 

 

Risk Implications: 
 

There are no specific concerns that need to be addressed in 
respect of the recommendations contained in this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6b



Appendix-2019-57 

Page 2 of 3 

Aim  
 
This is the twelfth annual report on the work undertaken on behalf of the Council in the 
statutory role of Chief Social Work Officer. 
 
The report provides the IJB with an account of decisions taken by the Chief Social Work 
Officer in the statutory areas of Fostering and Adoption, Child Protection, Secure Orders, 
Adult Protection, Adults with Incapacity, Mental Health and Criminal Justice.  The report of 
the Chief Social Work Officer is attached. 
 
It also gives an overview of regulation and inspection, workforce issues and social policy 
themes over the year April 2018 to March 2019, and highlights some of the key challenges 
for Social Work for the coming year. 
 
Background   
 

The requirement that every local authority should have a professionally qualified Chief 
Social Work Officer is contained within Section 45 of the Local Government etc (Scotland) 
Act 1994. This requirement was reinforced by the recommendation contained in the 
Changing Lives Report published by the 21st Century Social Work Review Group to 
strengthen the governance and leadership roles of the Chief Social Work Officer.   
 
A specific role of Chief Social Work and Public Protection Officer has responsibility in 
Scottish Borders for the leadership of professional Social Work across the Council and 
ensuring the Council’s statutory Social Work legislative requirements are met.  This role 
reports directly to the Chief Executive. 
 
In 2017 the Scottish Government published an updated template and guidance to enable 
Chief Social Work Officers across Scotland to develop a more consistent approach to the 
production of their reports and allow summary comparison of the delivery and performance 
of Social Work across different areas.  This template has been used to provide this report.  
This has provided helpful comparative data for Social Work which has been published to 
give a picture of Social Work across Scotland. 
 
Overview and Evaluation 
 
In 2017 the governance arrangements for Social Work in Scottish Borders Council were 
revised with the Chief Social Work Officer reporting directly to the Chief Executive.  The 
Chief Social Work Officer attends the Integration Joint Board as a non-voting member to 
provide professional advice and guidance in matters pertaining to Social Work.  The Chief 
Social Work Officer also has a role in the strengthening of Children and Young People’s 
leadership group, as well as maintaining oversight of public protection arrangements at a 
local level. 
 
There have been a number of achievements during this period, including an ongoing focus 
on improving arrangements for the discharge process from hospital to enable people to 
move to appropriate care settings in a timely way, the ongoing development and redesign 
of wider Public Protection services and Key Social Work performance data is contained in 
the report in Appendix B.   
 

Page 38



Appendix-2019-57 

Page 3 of 3 

Challenges facing Social Work for 2017/18 are identified in the report.  There are ongoing 
financial constraints and we continue to strive to identify and implement new ways of 
working and engaging those who use our services to improve outcomes.   
 
There continues to be challenges in recruitment and retention of staff in many aspects of 
service delivery and we are planning on launching a trainee program to create 
opportunities for some of our existing ‘unqualified’ staff to progress onto professional social 
work courses.   
 
The work on reviewing and developing our Public Protection services is progressing with 
the suggested realignment of governance, enhanced co-location arrangements and 
improved working practices being at the centre of the changes.  A significant factor in this 
is the clear focus on looking at risk through the lens of a ‘think family’ approach.  
 
Summary  
 
This report is reflection of the breadth and complexity of social work activity for 2017/18.  
Members of the IJB are asked to note this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stuart C. Easingwood 
Chief Social Work & Public Protection Officer / 
Interim Service Director Children and Young People 
 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41

Lramage
Typewritten Text
Appendix-2019-57

Lramage_1
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65

Lramage_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix-2019-57

Lramage_3
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Appendix-2019-58 

Page 1 of 5 

 
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care  
Integration Joint Board 
 
Meeting Date: 17 December 2019  
 

  

 

Report By Mike Porteous, Chief Finance Officer 

Contact Mike Porteous, Chief Finance Officer 

Telephone: 07973981394 

 

 
MONITORING AND FORECAST OF THE HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP 

BUDGET 2019/20 AT 31 OCTOBER 2019 

 

Purpose of Report: 
 

The purpose of this report is to update the IJB on the forecast 
year end position of the Health and Social Care Partnership 
(H&SCP) for 2019/20 based on available information to the 31st 
October 2019. 

 

Recommendations: 
 

The Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board is asked to: 
 

a) Acknowledge the forecast overspend of (£1.814m) for the 
Partnership for the year to 31 March 2020 based on 
available information   
 

b) Note the forecast position does not include the additional 
support requested by the Council of £0.528m as a decision 
had not been made at the time of submitting this report.  

 
c) Note that any expenditure in excess of the delegated 

budgets in 2019/20 will require to be funded by additional 
contributions from the partners in line with the approved 
scheme of integration  

 

Personnel: 
 

There are no resourcing implications beyond the financial 
resources identified within the report. Any significant resource 
impact beyond those identified in the report that may arise during 
2018/19 will be reported to the Integration Joint Board. 

 

Carers: 
 

N/A 

 

Equalities: 
 

There are no equalities impacts arising from the report. 

 

Financial: 
 

No resourcing implications beyond the financial resources 
identified within the report. 
 
The report draws on information provided in finance reports 
presented to NHS Borders and Scottish Borders Council. Both 

Page 73

Agenda Item 6c



Appendix-2019-58 

Page 2 of 5 

partner organisations’ Finance functions have contributed to its 
development and will work closely with IJB officers in delivering 
its outcomes. 

 

Legal: 
 

Supports the delivery of the Strategic Plan and is in compliance 
with the Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Act 2014 and 
any consequential Regulations, Orders, Directions and Guidance.  
 

 

Risk Implications: 
 

To be reviewed in line with agreed risk management strategy. 
The key risks outlined in the report form part of the draft financial 
risk register for the partnership. 

 
1 Background   
 
1.1 The report relates to the forecast position on both the budget supporting all 

functions delegated to the partnership (the “delegated budget”) and the budget 
relating to large-hospital functions retained and set aside for the population of the 
Scottish Borders (the “set-aside budget”). 

  
1.2 The forecast position is based on the most recent available information presented to 

Scottish Borders Council and the Board of NHS Borders. It highlights the key areas 
of financial pressure at 31 October 2019 and any actions identified to manage the 
position to the year end.  

   
2 Overview of Monitoring and Forecast Position at 31 October 2019 
 
2.1 An overspend of (£1.814m) is forecast on the budgets delegated by the IJB to the 

H&SCP for the year to 31 March 2020. The forecast overspend does not reflect the 
impact of the requested financial support to address pressures within the Social 
Care services. If approval is given to allocate the additional support of £0.528m the 
forecast overspend falls to (£1.286m). A breakdown of the forecast position by 
service within Delegated Function is provided in Appendix 1. 

 
Healthcare Functions 
2.2 The forecast for delegated Healthcare functions is an underspend of £0.132m. This 

position reflects the allocation £4.095m of Brokerage to the Delegated Functions 
from the £9.300m received from the Scottish Government and a further allocation of 
non recurring corporate savings of £2.570m.  A more detailed breakdown of 
Generic Services has been included to facilitate a better understanding of the 
services driving the forecast position in this area. The forecast underspend 
comprises a residual balance of (£0.908m) undelivered savings offset primarily by 
vacancies across Mental Health and Dental services within Generic Other.   

 
Social Care Functions 
2.3 The delegated Social Care functions are forecasting an overspend of (£0.747m) for 

the year to 31 March 2020. This position reflects the Chair and Vice Chair’s Action 
to allocate £0.300m of Transformation funds to address Social Care pressures. It 
also reflects the virement of additional non recurring funding of £1.496m into the 
Council H&SC services and the agreement of a range of operational actions to 
address the pressures. 

Page 74



Appendix-2019-58 

Page 3 of 5 

If the allocation of the requested additional support of £0.528m is agreed by the IJB 
the forecast overspend will reduce to (£0.219m).  

 
2.4 The forecast overspend falls primarily within Older People and Generic services. 

The pressures on the commissioning budget for Residential and Nursing Care beds, 
together with lower than anticipated levels of SDS clawback income are driving the 
Older People’s forecast of (£0.685m) over. The Generic Services overspend of 
(£0.157m) relates to a client transitioning to Adult services who has been placed in a 
secure unit under an indefinite Sheriff’s order. These forecast overspends are offset 
by significant underspends within the Physical Disabilities service relating to 
changes in the expected costs of 2 clients. 

 
2.5   In response to the forecast overspend the Council has set out a range of actions 

which form the basis of a Financial Recovery Plan to bring spend back in line with 
budget by the year end. The decision on the allocation of the additional support 
requested will impact on the level of overspend the recovery plan will be required to 
address. These actions are listed below and their impact will be reflected in the 
monthly monitoring reports to the IJB. 

 

 Refocus on the delivery of planned savings 

 Identifying new and / or accelerating future savings plans 

 Deferring staff recruitment 

 Reducing agency spend 

 Maximising the use of the Block contract 

 Exploring 3rd party charges 
 
 
Large Hospital Functions Set-Aside 
2.6 The Set-Aside functions are forecasting an overspend of (£1.199m) for the year to 

31 March 2020. This position reflects the allocation £0.933m of Brokerage to the 
Delegated Functions from the £9.300m received from the Scottish Government and 
a further allocation of non recurring corporate savings of £0.585m. However 
undelivered savings of (£0.397m) are a key factor in the reported overspend.       
The extended use of surge beds beyond last winter in Medicine and Long Term 
Conditions resulted in an underlying pressure which is now being managed but the 
earlier impact remains a key driver of the overspend. The use of bank and agency 
staff to support Nursing and Medical vacancies and sickness absence, and ensure 
safe rotas across all the Set Aside services are also contributing to the overspend.  

 
 
3 Savings Summary 
 
3.1 The ability of the Partnership to identify robust achievable savings schemes to 

address the in year and recurring savings targets set is key to delivering a break 
even year end position. The table below summarises the targets set for 2019/20 and 
the level of delivery forecast by delegated function. 

Page 75



Appendix-2019-58 

Page 4 of 5 

Summary 2019/20 At end of Month: October

Savings Non Recurring Revised Delivered Forecast Forecast Under Recurring

Target Support Target To Date Delivery Delivery Delivery

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Social Care (2,613) 1,126 (1,487) 607 880 0 607

Healthcare (9,418) 6,665 (2,753) 485 1,360 (908) 2,278

Large Hospital Functions Set-Aside (2,145) 1,518 (627) 147 83 (397) 394

Total (14,176) 9,309 (4,867) 1,239 2,323 (1,305) 3,279

MONTHLY REVENUE SAVINGS MANAGEMENT REPORT

 
 
3.2 The non recurring support provided by the Council reflects additional funding to 

support the underdelivery of savings schemes. Within Health the non recurring 
support reflects the allocation of brokerage and non recurring savings in year.   

 
3.3 The forecast delivery identifies a significant number and value of savings schemes 

that are still to be delivered. Any slippage or underdelivery of these forecast savings 
will require alternative schemes to be identified and delivered in their place. The 
H&SC Leadership group will now bring a greater focus to the identification and 
delivery of recurring savings as part of its monthly meetings. 

 
3.4 It is important to note that the Partnership is forecasting recurring delivery of 

£3.279m of savings at this stage. The savings targets for 2020/21 will be confirmed 
as part of the Joint Financial Planning process but underdelivery of current year 
savings will impact on the overall target for 2020/21. 

 
  
4 Delivering Financial Balance 
 
4.1 The forecast overspend of (£1.814m) comprises (£1.199m) within Health and 

(£0.747m) within Council commissioned services. The Health Board is reporting a 
balanced year end position overall which confirms that at this point in time an 
additional allocation can be made to cover the balance within Health services at the 
year end.  

 
4.2 The forecast overspend within the Council services requires further action. The 

components of a Financial Recovery Plan have been drawn up to address the 
residual gap within H&SC services commissioned from the Council.  If the request 
for additional support of £0.528m is approved then the overspend will fall 
substantially. 

 
4.3 Should these actions fail to bring the position back into balance the Council will be 

asked to provide an additional allocation to cover any overspend within their H&SC 
services at year end.    

 
5 Risk 
 

5.1 There is a risk that the operational actions put in place across Older People’s and 
Learning Disabilities services do not result in the savings required. This will increase 
the requirements on the Recovery Plan. 

 

Page 76



Appendix-2019-58 

Page 5 of 5 

5.2 There is a risk that additional pressures arise over the winter months and the 
forecast position deteriorates. Further management action will be required to bring 
spend back in line. Ongoing monitoring reports to the IJB will ensure the Board is 
aware of any change in the forecast position and able to take any necessary 
proposed action as early as possible.  

 
5.3  There is also a risk that the Recovery Plan actions do not deliver the required 

reduction in spend.  Close monitoring of the financial position will enable alternative 
proposals to be discussed where necessary. The establishment of weekly 
monitoring meetings with finance and Social Work services will enable early 
reporting of progress. 

 
5.4 A significant risk exists in relation to the forecast delivery of existing and planned 

savings schemes. Slippage or non delivery will impact on the in year and recurring 
financial position of the H&SCP. Progress is monitored through the Turnaround 
process within NHSB and the weekly service meetings within SBC.   

 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Summary 2019/20 At end of Month: October

Base Actual Revised Projected Outturn Requested Variance if 

Budget to Date Budget Outturn Variance Support Support Agreed

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Joint Learning Disability Service 17,852 12,876 22,870 22,907 (37) (37)

Joint Mental Health Service 16,813 10,636 18,909 18,577 332 332

Joint Alcohol and Drug Service 545 306 655 631 24 24

Older People Service 24,818 9,272 20,663 21,348 (685) 528 (157)

Unidentified savings (4,714) 0 (2,268) (1,360) (908) (908)

Physical Disability Service 3,457 2,252 3,476 3,342 134 134

Prescribing 22,795 13,842 24,099 24,099 0 0

Generic Services 68,812 41,202 75,924 75,399 525 525

Large Hospital Functions Set-Aside 22,514 14,996 24,436 25,636 (1,199) (1,199)

Total 172,892 105,382 188,764 190,579 (1,814) 528 (1,286)

MONTHLY REVENUE MANAGEMENT REPORT

P
age 79

Lramage_4
Typewritten Text
Appendix-2019-58



Delegated Budget Social Care Functions 2019/20 At end of Month:

Base Actual Revised Projected Outturn Requested Variance if 

Budget to Date Budget Outturn Variance Support Support Agreed

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Joint Learning Disability Service 14,301 10,302 18,790 18,832 (42) (42)

Joint Mental Health Service 2,039 1,320 2,154 2,175 (21) (21)

Joint Alcohol and Drug Service 176 43 176 152 24 24

Older People Service 24,818 9,272 20,663 21,348 (685) 528 (157)

Physical Disability Service 3,457 2,252 3,476 3,342 134 134

Generic Services 4,287 2,237 6,047 6,204 (157) (157)

Total 49,078 25,426 51,306 52,053 (747) 528 (219)

MONTHLY REVENUE MANAGEMENT REPORT

Page 2 of 4

P
age 80



Delegated Budget Healthcare Functions 2019/20 At end of Month: October

Base Actual Revised Projected Outturn

Budget to Date Budget Outturn Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Joint Learning Disability Service 3,551 2,574 4,080 4,075 5

Joint Mental Health Service 14,774 9,316 16,755 16,402 353

Joint Alcohol and Drug Service 369 263 479 479 0

Prescribing 22,795 13,842 24,099 24,099 0

Unidentified savings (4,714) 0 (8,933) (1,360) (7,573)

Allocated Non Recurring Savings Projects 0 0 2,570 2,570

Allocated Brokerage 0 0 4,095 4,095

Generic Services 64,525

     Independent Contractors 17,642 29,738 29,738 0

     Community Hospitals 3,141 5,337 5,327 10

     Allied Health Professionals 3,484 6,195 6,080 115

     District Nursing 2,133 3,510 3,742 (232)

     Generic Other 12,565 25,098 24,309 789

Total 101,300 64,960 113,022 112,890 132

.

MONTHLY REVENUE MANAGEMENT REPORT

Summary

Financial Commentary

P
age 81



Large Hospital Functions Set-Aside 2019/20 At end of Month: October

Base Actual Revised Projected Outturn

Budget to Date Budget Outturn Variance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Accident & Emergency 2,516 1,751 2,791 3,046 (255)

Medicine & Long-Term Conditions 13,231 9,339 15,492 15,914 (422)

Medicine of the Elderly 6,767 3,905 6,633 6,758 (125)

Turnaround Savings Target 0 0 (1,998) (83) (1,915)

Allocated Non Recurring Savings Projects 0 0 585 0 585

Allocated Brokerage 0 0 933 0 933

Total 22,514 14,996 24,436 25,636 (1,199)

MONTHLY REVENUE MANAGEMENT REPORT

Summary

Financial Commentary

P
age 82



Page 1 of 4 

 
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care  
Integration Joint Board 
 
Meeting Date: 17th DECEMBER 2019 

  

 

Report By Robert McCulloch-Graham, Chief Officer for Integration 

Contact Graeme McMurdo, Programme Manager, Scottish Borders Council 

Telephone: 01835 824000 ext. 5501 

 

 
QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT, DECEMBER 2019  
(LATEST AVAILABLE DATA AT END SEPTEMBER  2019) 

 

Purpose of Report: 
 

To provide a high level summary of quarterly performance for 
Integration Joint Board (IJB) members, using latest available 
data. The report focuses on demonstrating progress towards 
the Health and Social Care Partnership’s Strategic Objectives 

 

Recommendations: 
 

Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board is asked to: 
 

a) Note and approve any changes made to performance 
reporting. 

b) Note the key challenges highlighted. 
c) Direct actions to address challenges and to mitigate risk 

 

 

Personnel: 
 

n/a 

 

Carers: 
 

n/a 

 

Equalities: 
 

A comprehensive Equality Impact Assessment was completed 
as part of the strategic planning process. Performance 
information supports the strategic plan. 

 

Financial: 
 

n/a 

 

Legal: 
 

n/a 

 

Risk Implications: 
 

n/a 

 
 
 
 

Page 83

Agenda Item 6d

Lramage_5
Typewritten Text
Appendix-2019-59



Page 2 of 4 

1. Background 
 
1.1 The Integration Performance Group (IPG) established a set of high level Key 

performance indicators (KPI) for quarterly reporting to Integration Joint Board (IJB). 
The KPIs are aligned under the three Health and Social Care Strategic Plan 2018-
2021 strategic objectives, summarised below as: 

 Objective 1: keeping people healthy and out of hospital 

 Objective 2: ensuring people only stay in hospital for as long as required 

 Objective 3: building capacity within Scottish Borders communities 
 
1.2 The IPG will continue to review, refine and develop the indicators to better balance 

the mix of hospital-focussed and social care KPIs. Wherever possible, the indicators 
are selected from robust, reliable data sources that can be compared to the Scottish 
average. The IPG will ensure that any new indicators for reporting are similarly 
robust and that proposed changes are discussed at IJB.  

  
1.3 The IPG will endeavour to present the latest available data. For some measures, 

there may be a significant lag whilst data is validated and released publicly, which 
increases robustness and allows for national comparison. Work will continue within 
the IPG to explore options to improve the timeliness of data and to explore the pros 
and cons of using unverified but timelier local data. 

  
Note: As per the paragraph above, 4 of the measures contained in this report are 
awaiting data updates, however it is hoped that updated data will be released prior 
to the IJB meeting. The measures requiring update are: 

 Emergency Admissions [Latest (Q4 18/19) = 27.4 admissions per 1,000 pop.] 

 % £ spent on emergency hospital stays [Latest (Q4 18/19) = 21.3%] 

 Emergency readmissions within 28 days [Latest (Q4 18/19 = 10.8%] 

 Proportion of last 6 months of life spent at home or in a community setting [Latest 

Q4 18/19 = 86.2%]  

1.5 The IJB Strategic Risk Register focuses on risk and controls. The focus of the 
Quarterly Performance Report is to highlight performance trend but the indicators 
also show where performance is off target and where mitigating action to address 
this needs to be taken. Performance and risk are very closely linked.   

 
1.6 Two appendices are provided with this report: 
 
 Appendix 1 provides a high level, “at a glance” summary for EMT, IJB and the 

public. 
   

Appendix 2 provides further details for each of the measures including more 
information on performance trends and analysis.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



Page 3 of 4 

2. Summary of Performance 

2.1 The rate of emergency hospital admissions (all ages), shows an improvement 
(i.e.) a slight decrease over the last 4 quarters (from 28.3 to 27.4 per 1,000 
population); performance is very close to target (27.5) and slightly better than the 
Scotland average of 27.8. The admission rate specifically for over 75 years is 
showing improving performance over the last 4 quarters (89.2 to 83.3 per 1,000 
population); is better than the Scotland average (94.0) and is ahead of target (90.0). 
This suggests that action being taken to reduce emergency hospital admissions is 
having a positive impact.  

 
2.2 Borders has been demonstrating good performance in regard to A&E waiting times, 

over recent reporting periods, but performance has slipped in this latest reporting 
period. Data shows that 92.2% of A&E patients are seen within 4 hours. This is below 
our target of 95%, and is only slightly better than the latest Scotland average (92%). 
Average A&E attendances has not changed significantly over the last 4 reporting 
periods (65.6 to 66.3 per 1,000 population, therefore there may be other factors 
impacting on A&E waiting times.  

 
2.3 The balance of spend on emergency hospital stays remains positive - with 21.3% 

of health and care resource spent on hospital stays where the patient was admitted 
as an emergency (persons aged 18+). As stated in section 1.3 of this report, this 
figure requires updating.   

 
2.4 The quarterly occupied bed day rates for emergency admissions in Scottish 

Borders residents age 75+ fluctuates, but is demonstrating a positive performance 
trend over the last 4 quarters (1,032 to 824 per 1,000 population); is better than the 
Scotland average (1,141) and better than target (965).  

 
2.5 With regard to delayed discharge, the ‘snapshot’ data performance (taken on one 

day each month) is positive, with 21 delayed discharges recorded. This demonstrates 
a positive performance trend over the last 4 months (26 to 21) and is better than our 
target of 23. The quarterly rate of bed days associated with delayed discharges 
(75+) is also showing a positive trend over its last 4 quarters (171 to 164), is better 
than the Scotland average (191 – 2017/18 Scotland average) and better than our 
local target of 180 Bed Days per 1,000 of the population Aged 75+. 

 
2.6 The % of patients satisfied with care, staff & information in BGH and Community 

hospitals remains positive and the combined satisfaction rate remains high at 96.6%. 
The data is taken from questions asked in the “2 minutes of your time” survey done 
at BGH and community hospitals. One question area where we generally score lower 
(although still close to 95%), is “Did the patient always have the information and 
support needed to make decisions about their care or treatment”. This is potentially 
somewhere that improvements could be sought. 

 
2.7 Our performance for the Quarterly rate of emergency readmissions within 28 

days of discharge for Scottish Borders residents had been declining, peaking at a 
high of 11.4% readmission rate in Q3 2018/19. The latest figure of 10.8% shows 
improvement and suggests that projects such as Hospital to Home are having a 
positive impact. However, performance continues to be worse than Scotland average 
(10.3, Q4 2018/19) and worse than our local target (10.5). Continued action is 

Page 85



Page 4 of 4 

required to ensure that our emergency readmission performance continues to 
improve. 

 
2.8 The data in relation to end of life care demonstrates a positive trend over the last 4 

quarters (85.6% to 86.2%), but the reality is that the measure has remained relatively 
static (always generally between 86% and 88%).  We are currently below our local 
target (87.5%) and worse than Scotland (87.9% - 2017/18 average).  

 
2.9 A meeting was held with the Borders Carers Centre in October 2019 to discuss their 

KPIs, including suggestions for updated or new measures to help demonstrate the 
positive outcomes that the Carers Centre delivers. The outcome of the meeting was 
agreement that the measures currently being used are the most appropriate at this 
time. The % of Carer Support Plans completed performance of 49% is positive and 
is above our 40% target.  

 
2.10 Similarly, the outcomes for carers indicators remain positive. This suite of indicators 

looks at the positive outcome change between baseline assessment and subsequent 
review.  

  

Page 86



CHANGING HEALTH 
& SOCIAL CARE FOR YOU
Working with communities in the Scottish Borders for the best possible health and wellbeing

EMERGENCY HOSPITAL 
ADMISSIONS (BORDERS 
RESIDENTS, ALL AGES)  

27.4 
admissions per 1,000 
population

(Q4 - 2018/19)

+ve trend over 4 periods
Better than Scotland 
(27.8 – Q4 2018/19)
Very close to target (27.5)

• +ve trend over 4 reporting periods
• compares well to Scotland average
• compares well against local target

HOW ARE WE DOING?
OBJECTIVE 1
We will improve health of the population and reduce the number of hospital admissions.

EMERGENCY HOSPITAL 
ADMISSIONS (BORDERS 
RESIDENTS AGE 75+)  

83.3 
admissions per 1,000 
population Age 75+

(Q1 – 2019/20)

+ve trend over 4 periods
Better than Scotland 
(94.0 – Q3 2018/19)
Better than target (90.0)

ATTENDANCES 
AT A&E

66.3 
attendances per 1,000 
population

(Q1 – 2019/20)

-ve trend over 4 periods
Better than Scotland
(74.18 – Q1 2019/20)
Better than target (70)

£ ON EMERGENCY 
HOSPITAL STAYS  

21.3% 
of total health and care 
resource, for those Age 18+ 
was spent on emergency 
hospital stays
(Q4 – 2018/19)

+ve trend over 4 periods
Better than Scotland
(24.3% - 2018/19)
Better than target (21.5%)

Main Challenges
The rate of emergency admissions over the long-term (3 year period) is 
positive. Quarterly performance does fluctuate but generally speaking we 
are performing well against our locally set targets and performing well 
in comparison to Scotland.  The number of A&E attendances generally 
fluctuates between 7,000-8,000 attendances per quarter (which is 
equivalent to approx. 60-70 per 1,000 population per quarter). This is 
better than the Scotland average and better than our local target, but 
the trend over the last 4 quarters has crept up slightly. In relation to the 
percentage of the budget spent on emergency hospital stays, Borders has 
consistently performed better than Scotland and can also demonstrate a 
positive trend over time. As with all Health and Social Care Partnerships, 
we are expected to minimise the proportion of spend attributed to 
unscheduled stays in hospital.

Objective 1: Our plans for 2019/20
We will develop local “Wellness Centres”, expanding the 
use of community hubs and drop-in centres to create 
‘one-stop shops’ ideally covering both social care and a 
range of clinical needs. Through the development of single 
assessment and review, we will look to remove duplicate 
care assessments, develop more flexibility in regard to 
which professionals undertake assessments and increase 
Social Worker and Occupational Therapist involvement 
at daily ward rounds. We will introduce multi-disciplinary 
teams across the localities to triage individuals within the 
community to ensure that they can access services and 
receive appropriate Health & Social Care interventions 
ahead of any acute provision they may require.

SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE 
FOR INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD DECEMBER 2019
This report provides an overview of quarterly performance under the 3 Strategic Objectives within the Health & Social Care 
Partnership Strategic Plan, with latest available data at the end of September 2019. Annual performance is included in our 
latest Annual Performance Report 2018/19

• trend over 4 reporting periods
• comparison to Scotland average
• comparison against local target

• -ve trend over 4 reporting periods
• compares poorly to Scotland average
• compares poorly to local target

KEY

Page 87

http://Annual Performance Report 2018/19


A&E WAITING TIMES 
(TARGET = 95%)

92.2% 
of people seen within 
4 hours

(Sept 2019)

OBJECTIVE 2
We will improve the flow of patients into, through and out of hospital.

RATE OF OCCUPIED BED 
DAYS* FOR EMERGENCY 
ADMISSIONS (AGES 75+) 

824 
bed days per 1000 
population Age 75+

(Q1 – 2019/20)

NUMBER OF DELAYED 
DISCHARGES 
(“SNAPSHOT” TAKEN 1 
DAY EACH MONTH)

21 
over 72 hours

(Aug 2019)

+ve trend over 4 periods
Better than target (23)

RATE OF BED DAYS 
ASSOCIATED WITH 
DELAYED DISCHARGE  

164 
bed days per 1000 
population Age 75+

(Q1 – 2019/20)

+ve trend over 4 periods
Better than Scotland 
(191 - 17/18 average)
Better than target (180)

Main Challenges
Over the last number of reporting periods, A&E waiting time 
performance has been positive, with approx. 95% of patients being seen 
within 4hrs. The latest (Sept 2019) figure is below 95%, which is below 
our target and close to the Scotland average. The underlying reasons 
for this need to be established. Occupied bed day rates for emergency 
admissions (age 75+) has seasonal fluctuations but performance 
trend is positive – both long-term (over 3-years) and short-term (over 4 
quarters) – and we perform better than the Scottish average (although 
see note above*). Delayed discharge rates vary in regard to ‘snapshot’ 
data, but performance is positive and a target to reduce delayed 
discharges by 30% in 2019/20 has been set by the Health & Social Care 
Partnership. The percentage of patients satisfied with care, staff & 
information in BGH and Community Hospitals remains positive.

Objective 2: Our plans for 2019/20
We will continue to work across the HSC Partnership and 
Public Health to initiate a number of events, campaigns and 
communications promoting personal responsibility and 
encouraging Borderers to be healthy in areas such as diet, 
exercise and mental health. We will introduce a new Discharge 
Hub to deliver a more consistent approach to managing people’s 
progress through Hospital, and we will improve out-of-hours 
provision across a number of services. We will look at ways 
to promote a career in care, make greater use of community 
pharmacies and engage with local communities regarding what 
services the HSC Partnership can and cannot provide.  We will 
further develop community capacity and we will examine the 
bed-base mix across the care estate including the usage, 
role & function of Community Hospital beds.

“TWO MINUTES OF 
YOUR TIME” SURVEY 
– CONDUCTED AT BGH 
AND COMMUNITY 
HOSPITALS

96.6% 
overall satisfaction rate
(Q1 - 2019/20)

+ve trend over 4 periods
Better than target (95%)

*Occupied Bed Days in general/acute hospital beds such as Borders General Hospital.  This does not include bed days in the four Borders’ community hospitals.

-ve trend over 4 periods
Better than Scotland 
(92.0% - Mar 2019)
Worse than target (95%)

+ve trend over 4 periods
Better than Scotland 
(1141 Q3 2018/19)
Better than target 
(min 10% better than 
Scottish average)

EMERGENCY 
READMISSIONS WITHIN 28 
DAYS (ALL AGES)

10.8 
per 100 discharges from 
hospital were re-admitted 
within 28 days
(Q4 – 2018/19)

-ve trend over 4 Qtrs
Worse than Scotland 
(10.3 – Q4 2018/19)
Worse than target (10.5)

OBJECTIVE 3
We will improve the capacity within the community for people who have been in receipt of health and social care 
services to manage their own conditions and support those who care for them.

END OF LIFE CARE  

86.2% 
of people’s last 6 months 
was spend at home or in a 
community setting

(Q4 – 2018/19)

+ve trend over 4 Qtrs
Worse than Scotland
(87.9% - 17/18)
Worse than target (87.5%)

CARERS SUPPORT PLANS 
COMPLETED  

49% 
of carer support plans 
offered that have been taken 
up and completed in the last 
quarter 
(Q2 – 2019/20)

+ve trend over 4 Qtrs
Better than target (40%)

SUPPORT FOR CARERS: change 
between baseline assessment 
and review. Improvements in 
self- assessment 

(Q4 – 2018/19)

Main Challenges
The quarterly rate of emergency readmissions within 28 days 
of discharge (all ages) peaked at 11.4% in Q3 2018/19, increasing 
from a low of 10.0% in 2016/17. The measure is improving – 
initiatives such as Hospital to Home are impacting on readmission 
rates - but the latest performance result is still worse than the 
Scottish average and below target for this measure. Borders data 
in relation to end of life care shows relatively static performance.  
The latest available data for Carers demonstrates positive 
outcomes as a result of completed Carer Support Plans.

Objective 3: Our plans for 2019/20
We will improve signposting and support for unpaid and paid carers 
and expand the reablement functions we offer. We will continue to 
utilise Technology Enabled Care (TEC) products across the partnership 
and promote the use of TEC with professionals and the public. We will 
follow up our June 2019 ‘TEC Fest’ event with another event planned 
for December 2019.  TEC can play an important role in supporting 
individuals with complex needs, so that they can better manage their 
conditions and lead healthy, active and independent lives for as long as 
possible and give everyone greater choice and control over their care.

Managing the caring role
Feeling valued
Planning for the future

Health and well-being

+ve impact 
No Scotland comparison
No local target

Finance & benefits

Page 88



SUMMARY OF PERFORMANCE: 

LATEST AVAILABLE DATA AT END SEPTEMBER 2019

Quarterly Performance Report for the

Scottish Borders Integration Joint Board December 2019

Structured Around the 3 Objectives in the Revised Strategic Plan

Objective 1: We will improve health of the population and reduce the number of hospital admissions

Objective 2: We will improve patient flow within and outwith hospital

Objective 3: We will improve the capacity within the community for people who have been in receipt of health and social care services to manage their own 

conditions and support those who care for them

Page 89



Emergency Admissions, Scottish Borders residents All Ages

Source: MSG Integration Performance Indicators workbook (SMR01 data)

Q1

2016/17

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/18

Q4    

2017/18

Q1 

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4

2018/19

Scottish Borders - Rate of 

Emergency Admissions per 

1,000 population All Ages 30.2            28.2            29.4             27.9            28.2           26.5           27.8            26.8             28.3           27.0           28.8             27.4          

Scotland - Rate of 

Emergency Admissions per 

1,000 population All Ages

27.1            26.7            27.2             26.6            26.8           26.5           27.8            27.2             26.9           26.4           27.9             27.8          

Number of Emergency Admissions in Scottish Borders residents - all ages (quarterly figures)
Source: MSG Integration Performance Indicators workbook (SMR01 data)

Q1

2016/17

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/18

Q4

2017/18

Q1 

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3

 2018/19

Q4

2018/19

Number Scottish Borders 

Emergency Admissions - All 

Ages 3,457            3,232            3,364             3,198            3,246           3,043           3,192            3,084             3,250           3,101           3,312             3,151          
Number Scotland Emergency 

Admissions - All Ages 146,501        144,134        147,501        143,831       145,495       143,649       150,739        147,780        145,738      143,422       151,497        150,915      

How are we performing?

Objective 1: We will improve health of the population and reduce the number of hospital admissions

The quarterly number of Emergency Admissions for Scottish Borders residents (all ages) has continued to fluctuate since the start of the 2016/17 financial year; however, shows an 

overall decrease since the first quarter of 2016/17.   The corresponding  quarterly rate per  1,000 population has come down from 30.2 per 1,000 to 27.4 by the end of the fourth 

quarter of 2018/19.  Rates for the Borders were brought in line with the Scottish averages in the third and fourth quarters of 2017/18, but are gradually increasing throughout 

2018/19.  This is in contrast to the Scottish averages which have decreased in the first two quarters of the 2018/19 financial year.  Once official statistics  on emergency admission 

rates for 2018/19 are published for Scotland, we will be able to show the Scotland comparators in these performance reports.  Please note, Q1  2019/20 data is affected by 

completeness (97% complete) and therefore is not reported.

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

R
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

Rate of emergency admissions, Scottish Borders andScotland Residents All Ages(Quarterly)

 Rate per 1000 - SB  Rate per 1000 - Sct

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

2800

2900

3000

3100

3200

3300

3400

3500

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
A

d
m

is
si

o
n

s 
(S

co
tl

an
d

)

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
A

d
m

is
si

o
n

s 
(S

co
tt

is
h

 B
o

rd
er

s)

Emergency Admissions in Scottish Borders residents - all ages (quarterly figures)

Scottish Borders Admissions Scotland Admissions

Page 90



Emergency Admissions, Scottish Borders residents age 75+
Source: NSS Discovery 

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/18

Q4

2017/18

Q1 

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4

2018/19

Q1

2019/20

Number of Emergency 

Admissions, 75+ 1,054            1,107            1,065             1,074            959              1,009           1,096            1,040             1,069           1,108           1,076             1,020          

Rate of Emergency Admissions 

per 1,000 population 75+
89.4              94.0              90.4               89.6              80.0             84.2             91.5              86.8               89.2             92.5             89.8               83.3             

Emergency Admissions comparison, Scottish Borders and Scotland residents age 75+
Source: NSS Discovery

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/18

Q4

2017/18

Q1 

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4

2018/19

Q1

2019/20

Rate of Emergency Admissions 

per 1,000 population 75+ 

Scottish  Borders

89.4              94.0              90.3               89.6              80.0             84.2             91.5              86.8               89.2             92.5             89.8               83.3             

Rate of Emergency Admissions 

per 1,000 population 75+ 

Scotland
89.8              94.7              95.8               90.9              89.1             95.8             97.7              92.2               88.5             94.0             - -

How are we performing?

The rate of emergency admissions for Scottish Borders residents aged 75 and over has generally been decreasing since the first quarter of 2016/17.  The Borders rate has been 

generally lower than the Scottish average since the second quarter of 2016/17 (July-Sept 2016), but has now crept up.

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20

R
at

e

Rate of Emergency Admissions per 1,000 population 75+ Scottish Borders and Scotland

Scottish Borders Scotland

75

80

85

90

95

100

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/20

R
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

Rate of emergency admissions, Scottish Border Residents age 75+ (Quarterly Figure)

Emergency Admissions 75+ Lower Limit Average over 12 Quarters Upper Limit

Page 91



Number of A&E Attendances per 1,000 population
Source: MSG Integration Performance Indicators workbook (data from NHS Borders Trakcare system)

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/18

Q4

2017/18

Q1

 2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4

2018/19

Q1

2019/20

Rate of Attendances, Scottish 

Borders
63.44            61.02            60.04             66.55            65.64           66.68           61.30            69.23             65.60           60.49           59.59             66.34          

Rate of Attendances, Scotland 69.12            66.79            65.17             70.95            69.43           69.60           65.88            73.14             71.38           69.58           69.91             74.18          

Q1

2016/17

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/18

Q4

2017/18

Q1 

2018/19

Q2

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4

2018/19

% of health and care resource 

spent on emergency hospital 

stays (Scottish Borders)
22.8 21.8 21.9 22.8 22.2 21.3 22.6 23.7 23.3 22.6 22.0 21.3

Source: Core Suite Indicator workbooks

How are we performing?

The percentage of health and social care resource spent on unscheduled hospital stays has seen an overall decrease since the first quarter of 2016/17.  This spiked at the end of the 

2017/18 financial year although has continued to decreased over this financial year (2018/19).  As with other Health and Social Care Partnerships, Scottish Borders is expected to 

continue work to reduce the relative proportion of spend attributed to unscheduled stays in hospital.

* Q1 of 2019/20 affected by completeness (97% complete) and will be refreshed in future reports.

Percentage of health and care resource spent on hospital stays where the patient was admitted in an emergency: persons aged 18+                                                                                           

15.0

16.0

17.0

18.0

19.0

20.0

21.0

22.0

23.0

24.0

25.0

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

Percentage of health and care resource spent on hospital stays where the patient was admitted in an emergency: persons aged 18+

% health/care resource spent on emergency hosp. stays Average over Last 12 Qrtrs Upper Limit Lower Limit

0

0.05

0.1

0.15

0.2

0.25

0.3

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Scottish Borders Scotland

60

62

64

66

68

70

72

74

76

54

56

58

60

62

64

66

68

70

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20

A
tt

en
d

an
ce

 N
u

m
b

er
s 

(S
co

tl
an

d
)

A
tt

en
d

an
ce

 N
u

m
b

er
s 

(S
co

tt
is

h
 B

o
rd

er
s)

Number of A&E Attendances per 1,000 population

Scottish Borders Scotland

Page 92



Accident and Emergency attendances seen within 4 hours- Scottish Borders
Source: NHS Borders Trakcare system

Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19

Number of A&E 

Attendances seen within 

4 hours
2726 2446 2467 2575 2317 2561 2775 2828 2821 2900 2910 2749

%  A&E Attendances seen within 4 hour0.86 0.914 0.89 0.863 0.928 0.918 0.908 0.941 0.961 0.944 0.964 0.938

% A&E Attendances seen within 4 Hours - Scottish Borders and Scotland Comparison
Source: MSG Integration Performance Indicators workbook (A&E2 data) / ISD Scotland ED Activity and Waiting Times publication

Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19
%  A&E Attendances seen 

within 4 hour

 Scottish Borders
94.4 95.7 94.1 93.3 91.4 96.1 94.0 94.8 93.9 91.3 92.2 92.2

%  A&E Attendances seen 

within 4 hour

 Scotland
92.3 91.3 89.8 89.3 90.1 92.0 - - - - - -

Objective 2: We will improve patient flow within and out with hospital

How are we performing?

Patients attending A&E and the Acute Assessment Unit (AAU) are routinely discharged within 4 hours. NHS Borders is working towards consistently achieving the 

98% local stretch standard. The 95% standard has been achieved three times in the last Financial Year (2018/19), once in September 18, November 18 and again in 

March 19.  One of the main causes of breaches has been delays waiting for bed availability, which reflects ongoing challenges in the discharge of complex patients.  

Scottish Borders consistantly performs better than the Scottish average.

2000

2200

2400

2600

2800

3000

3200

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

C
o

u
n

t

Accident & Emergency Number of Patients seen within 4 Hours

A&E Attendance 4 hrs Lower Limit Upper Limit Average over Last 12 months

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

% A&E Attendances seen within 4 Hours - Scottish Border Scotland Comparison

Scottish Borders Scotland

Page 93



Occupied Bed Days for emergency admissions, Scottish Borders Residents age 75+
Source: NSS Discovery 

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/17

Q4

2017/18

Q1

2018/19

Q2

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4

2018/19

Q1

2019/20

Number of Occupied Bed 

Days for emergency 

Admissions, 75+
10109 11028 11387 11035 10103 10582 12377 10523 12356 10407 10587 10089

Rate of Occupied Bed 

Days for Emergency 

Admissions, per 1,000 

population 75+

857 935 966 921 843 883 1033 876 1032 868 883 824

Occupied Bed Days for emergency admissions, Scottish Borders and Scotland Residents age 75+
Source: NSS Discovery

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/18

Q4

2017/18

Q1

2018/19

Q2

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4

2018/19

Q1

2019/20
Rate of Occupied Bed 

Days for Emergency 

Admissions, per 1,000 

population 75+ Scottish 

Borders

857 935 966 921 843 883 1033 876 1032 868 883 824

Rate of Occupied Bed 

Days for Emergency 

Admissions, per 1,000 

population 75+ Scotland

1178 1248 1284 1203 1094 1161 1250 1172 1072 1141 - -

How are we performing?

The quarterly occupied bed day rates for emergency admissions in Scottish Borders residents aged 75 and over have fluctuated over time but are lower than the 

Scottish averages. Since the fourth quarter of 2017/18, the Scottish Borders rate has twice gone above 1,000 per 1,000 of the population. 

It should be noted that this nationally-derived measure does not include bed-days in the four  Borders' Community Hospitals, which  will be at least part of the 

reason for the Borders rates appearing lower than the national averages.  With this in mind, the Scotland average has improved in quarter two of 2018/19, bringing 

it closer in line with Scottish Borders.

700

750

800

850

900

950

1000

1050

1100

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20

R
a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0

Rate of Occupied Bed Days for Emergency Admissions, per 1,000 population 75+  (Quarterly)

Occupied Bed Days Rate Lower Limit Upper Limit Average over 12 quarters

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20

R
at

e

Rate of Occupied Bed Days for Emergency Admissions, per 1,000 population 75+ Scottish Borders (Quarterly)

Scottish Borders Scotland

Page 94



Delayed Discharges (DDs)
Source: EDISON/NHS Borders Trakcare system

Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19

Number of DDs over 2 

weeks
17 15 30 17 12 13 11 10 13 18 17 16

Number of DDs over 72 

hours
23 23 36 19 21 20 17 19 26 26 26 21

Please note the Delayed Discharge  over 72 hours measurement has been implemented from April 2016.

The DD over 2 weeks measurement has several years of data and has been plotted on a statistical run chart (with upper, lower limits and an average) to 

provide additional statistical information to complement the more recent 72 hour measurement.

-0.2

4.8

9.8

14.8

19.8

24.8

29.8

34.8

39.8

Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

C
o

u
n

t

"Snapshot" Numbers of Delayed Discharges over 72 hours, Scottish Borders

Lower Limit for 72 Hrs Upper Limit for 72 Hrs Average 72 hrs over last 12 months Delayed Discharge over 72 hours

-0.2

4.8

9.8

14.8

19.8

24.8

29.8

34.8

Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

C
o

u
n

t

"Snapshot" Numbers of Delayed Discharges over 2 weeks, Scottish Borders

Delayed Discharge 2 week Lower Limit for 2 Wk Upper Limit for 2 Wk Average 2 week over last 12 months

Page 95



Source: Core Suite Indicator workbooks

Q2 

2016/17

Q3 

2016/17

Q4 

2016/17

Q1 

2017/18

Q2 

2017/18

Q3 

2017/18

Q4 

2017/18

Q1 

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4 

2018/19

Q1

2019/20

Bed days per 1,000 

population aged 75+
157 178 153 176 219 274 187 200 171 223 171 164

Source: Core Suite Indicator workbooks

Scottish Borders

Scotland

Bed days associated with delayed discharges in residents aged 75+;  rate per 1,000 population aged 75+ 

761

Scotland / Scottish Borders comparison of bed days associated with delayed discharges in residents aged 75+

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19*

604 628 522 647 855

922 1044 915 841 762 793

How are we performing?

Up to 2016/17, rates for  the Scottish Borders were lower (better) than the Scottish average.   However, in 2017/18 the Borders' rate was higher than Scotland's.  
This has reduced in 2018/19's provisional figure.

*Please note definitional changes were made to the recording of delayed discharge information from 1 July 2016 onwards. Delays for healthcare reasons and those in non 
hospital locations (e.g. care homes) are no longer recorded as delayed discharges. In this indicator, no adjustment has been made to account for the definitional changes during 
the year 2016/17. The changes affected reporting of figures in some areas more than others therefore comparisons before and after July 2016 may not be possible at partnership 
level. It is estimated that, at Scotland level, the definitional changes account for a reduction of around 4% of bed days across previous months up to June 2016, and a decrease of 
approximately 1% in the 2016/17 bed day rate for people aged 75+.

How are we performing?
The rate of bed days assocuated with delayed discharges (75+) for quarter 3 of 2017/18 was higher than any previous quarter, increasing to over 200 per 1,000 
residents for the first time.  Quarter 3 for 18/19 had a similar spike to the same period the previous year, seeing the 2nd highest rate over the past 2 years.

NHS Borders is facing significant challenges with Delayed Discharges, which continues to impact on patient flow within the Borders General Hospital and our four 
Community Hospitals.

-0.2

49.8

99.8

149.8

199.8

249.8

299.8

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20

C
o

u
n

t

Bed days associated with delayed discharges in residents aged 75+; rate per 1,000 population aged 75+.

Bed days per 1,000 population aged 75+ Lower Limit Upper Limit Average over last 12 Qrtrs

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19*

Bed days associated with delayed discharges in residents aged 75+; rate per 1,000 population aged 75+.

Scottish Borders Scotland

Page 96



BGH and Community Hospital Patient/Carer/Relative '2 Minutes of Your Time' Survey
Source: NHS Borders

Q1 Was the patient satisfied with the care and treatment provided?
Q2 

2016/17

Q3 

2016/17

Q4 

2016/17

Q1 

2017/18

Q2 

2017/18

Q3 

2017/18

Q4 

2017/18

Q1 

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4 

2018/19

Q1

2019/20

Patients feeling satisfied or 

yes to some extent
160 105 116 105 206 141 135 156 135 117 108 99

% feeling satisfied or yes to 

some extent
98.8% 97.2% 95.1% 98.1% 97.2% 94.6% 97.1% 96.3% 98.5% 100.0% 95.7% 93.4%

Q2 Did the staff providing the care understand what mattered to the patient?
Q2 

2016/17

Q3 

2016/17

Q4 

2016/17

Q1 

2017/18

Q2 

2017/18

Q3 

2017/18

Q4 

2017/18

Q1 

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4 

2018/19

Q1

2019/20

Staff providing the care 

understood what mattered 

to the patient, or yes to 

some extent

151 106 113 105 213 144 135 158 136 119 110 106

% understood what 

mattered or yes to some 

extent

93.2% 99.1% 94.2% 98.1% 98.6% 96.0% 93.8% 96.9% 98.6% 98.3% 95.7% 100.0%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Q2
2016/17

Q3
2016/17

Q4
2016/17

Q1
2017/18

Q2
2017/18

Q3
2017/18

Q4
2017/18

Q1
2018/19

Q2
2018/19

Q3
2018/19

Q4
2018/19

Q1
2019/20

Staff providing the care understood what mattered to the patient

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Q2
2016/17

Q3
2016/17

Q4
2016/17

Q1
2017/18

Q2
2017/18

Q3
2017/18

Q4
2017/18

Q1
2018/19

Q2
2018/19

Q3
2018/19

Q4
2018/19

Q1
2019/20

Patient satisfied with the care and treatment provided

% feeling satisfied or yes to some extent

Page 97



Q3 Did the patient always have the information and support needed to make decisions about their care or treatment?

Q2 

2016/17

Q3 

2016/17

Q4 

2016/17

Q1 

2017/18

Q2 

2017/18

Q3 

2017/18

Q4 

2017/18

Q1 

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4 

2018/19

Q1

2019/20

Patients always had the 

information and support 

needed to make decisions 

about their care or 

treatment, or yes to some 

extent

147 101 111 99 200 137 129 141 125 101 102 100

% always had information or 

support, or yes to some 

extent

89.6% 98.1% 95.7% 94.3% 95.2% 92.6% 93.5% 93.4% 93.3% 94.4% 97.1% 94.3%

How are we performing?

The 2 Minutes of Your Time Survey is carried out across the Borders General Hospital and Community Hospitals and comprises of 3 quick questions asked of 

patients, relatives or carers by volunteers. There are also boxes posted in wards for responses. The results given here are the responses where the answer given was 

in the affirmative or 'yes to some extent'. Percentages given are of the total number of responses.

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

Q2
2016/17

Q3
2016/17

Q4
2016/17

Q1
2017/18

Q2
2017/18

Q3
2017/18

Q4
2017/18

Q1
2018/19

Q2
2018/19

Q3
2018/19

Q4
2018/19

Q1
2019/20

Patient always had theinformation and support needed to make decisions about their care or treatment

Page 98



Emergency readmissions within 28 days of discharge from hospital, Scottish Borders residents (all ages)

Q1

2016/17

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/18

Q4

2017/18

Q1

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4

2018/19

28-day readmission 

rate Scottish Borders 

(per 100 discharges) 10.3 10.4 10.0 10.1 10.7 10.2 10.4 10.6 10.7 11.1 11.4 10.8

28-day readmission 

rate Scotland (per 100 

discharges) 9.9 10.1 10.2 9.9 10.2 10.2 10.4 10.2 10.0 10.4 10.5 10.3

Source: Core Suite Indicator workbooks

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19*

Scottish Borders 86.1 85.7 85.6 85.6 85.6 87.0 85.9

Scotland 86.2 86.1 86.2 86.7 87.1 87.9 -

Objective 3: We will improve the capacity within the community for people who have been in receipt of health 

and social care services to manage their own conditions and support those who care for them

How are we performing?

The quarterly rate of emergency readmissions within 28 days of discharge for Scottish Borders residents has fluctuated since the start of the 

2016/17 financial year, but has generally remained  under 10.6 readmissions per 100 discharges.  There has been a notable increase in 

readmissions within 28 days of discharge since quarter two of 2017/18.

The Borders rate has usually been higher than the Scottish average and this trend continues.  Data for Q1 is incomplete and therefore has not 

been provided.

Percentage of last 6 months of life spent at home or in a community setting

84

85

86

87

88

89

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19*

Percentage of last 6 months of life spent at home or in a community setting

Scottish Borders Scotland

9

9.5

10

10.5

11

11.5

12

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

R
at

e 
o

f 
R

ea
d

m
is

si
o

n
 p

er
 1

0
0

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
s

Emergency readmissions within 28 days of discharge from Hospital Scottish Borders (all ages) and Scotland (all 
ages).

Scottish Borders Scotland

Page 99



Source: Core Suite Indicator workbooks

Q1

2016/17

Q2

2016/17

Q3

2016/17

Q4

2016/17

Q1

2017/18

Q2

2017/18

Q3

2017/18

Q4

2017/18

Q1

2018/19

Q2 

2018/19

Q3 

2018/19

Q4

2018/19

% last 6 months of life 

spent at home or in a 

community setting 

Scottish Borders

87.4 82.4 87.9 86.4 88.3 83.3 87.9 87.8 85.6 83.7 86.9 86.2

Percentage of last 6 months of life spent at home or in a community setting

How are we performing?
The percentage of last 6 months of life spent at home or in a community setting has appeared fairly consistent in the Borders from year to year since 
2013/14 but in each case remains a little below the Scottish average, which is gradually increasing.

In addition to the annual measure around end of life care, local quarterly data has been provided in relation to last 6 months of life (for Scottish Borders 
only). However, the very “spikey” nature of the figures requires the Integration Performance Group to investigate this measure further to explore the 
reasons for the fluctuations and assess its usefulness and accuracy within this performance scorecard. It may be that the figures need to be treated on a 
“provisional” basis. 

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

%

Percentage of last 6 months of life spent at home or in a community setting

% last 6 months of life spent at home / community setting Upper Limit Lower Limit Average over last 12 Qrtrs

Page 100



Carers offered and completed Carer Support Plans
Source: Carers Centre

Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19
Assessments offered 

during Adult 

Assessment 68 60 62 65 71 75 37 36 37 53 66 56
Asssessments 

completed by Carers 

Centre 23 24 12 18 29 22 30 26 20 26 36 24

Health and Wellbeing (Q4 2018/19)
I think my quality of life just now is:

Managing the Caring role
I think my ability to manage my caring role just now is:

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

C
o

u
n

t

Carer Support Plans offered and completed

Offered Completed

 1 = Poor 2 3 4 5 6 = Excellent

Baseline No 8 10 13 11 6 3

Review No 5 8 11 19 12 1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

C
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

ar
er

s

Quality of Life

Health & Wellbeing

 1 = Unable 2 3 4 5 6 = No difficulties

Baseline No 6 9 10 7 10 9

Review No 1 4 9 13 21 8

0

5

10

15

20

25

C
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

ar
er

s

Ability to Manage

Managing the Caring Role

Page 101



How are you valued by Services
I think the extent to which I am valued by services just now is:

Planning for the Future
I think where I am at with planning for the future is:

Finance & Benefits
I think where I am at with action on finances and benefits is:

A Carers Assessment includes a baseline review of several key areas which are reviewed within a 3 month to 12 month period depending on the level of need 

and the indicators from the initial baseline. This information is collated to measure individual outcomes for carers. 

How are we performing?

 1 = Very Low 2 3 4 5 6 = Very High

Baseline No 6 4 9 7 16 9

Review No 2 2 10 9 16 17

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

C
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

ar
er

s

Extent to which valued

How are you valued by Services

 1 = Low 2 3 4 5 6 = High

Baseline No 3 11 10 12 10 5

Review No 2 6 10 12 18 8

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

C
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

ar
er

s

Where I am with planning

Planning for the Future

 1 = Poor 2 3 4 5 6 = Excellent

Baseline No 2 2 6 7 17 17

Review No 2 1 2 8 16 27

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

C
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

ar
er

s

Finances in order

Finance & Benefits

Page 102



Appendix-2019-60 

Page 1 of 2 

 
Scottish Borders Health & Social Care  
Integration Joint Board 
 
Meeting Date: 17 December 2019 

  

 

Report By Rob McCulloch-Graham, Chief Officer Health & Social Care 

Contact Louise Ramage, Business Lead for Health & Social Care 

Telephone: 01896 828290 / 01835 826685 

 

 
STRATEGIC PLANNING GROUP REPORT 

 

 

Purpose of Report: 
 

To update the Integration Joint Board on the work of the Strategic 
Planning Group. 

 

Recommendations: 
 

The Health & Social Care Integration Joint Board is asked to: 
 

a) Note this report  
 

 

Personnel: 
 

N/A 

 

Carers: 
 

N/A 

 

Equalities: 
 

N/A 

 

Financial: 
 

N/A 

 

Legal: 
 

N/A 

 

Risk Implications: 
 

N/A 

 
 

Page 103

Agenda Item 6e



Appendix-2019-60 

Page 2 of 2 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this report is to update the Integration Joint Board (IJB) on any key actions 
and issues arising from the Strategic Planning Group (SPG) meeting held Wednesday 6 
November 2019. 
 
SPG Key Actions & Issues  
 
2020 Cycle of Meeting Dates  
The group approved meeting schedule for next year, acknowledging the dates line up with 
the IJB and the Quarterly Performance reporting.  
 
Quarterly Performance Report 
The info graphic report was presented to members, which detailed several positive 
messages on trends against local and national targets. Members were advised that some 
indicators would be updated prior to presentation to the IJB. 
 
A discussion ensued regarding the lacking care provision locally, in terms of nursing care 
and homecare.  
 
Locality Working Group Workshop - Update  
An overview was provided of the report which captured the outcomes of the Locality 
Working Group (LWG) workshop held on 30 September 2019, which had around 20 
attendees. Members were advised that minutes and action plans from LWGs would be 
noted at SPG. 
 
After a discussion with regards to funding for each LWG, it was decided that no budget 
would be allocated due to the danger of finances distracting from the purpose of 
community communication links and facilitate coproduction. Concerns were raised that 
people may not attend if expenses for transport would not be funded. The Chair advised 
that discretionary funding streams were available within SBC to apply for if necessary.  
 

Concerns were raised over the availability of the allocated members of Leadership Team 
in supporting the Locality Leads due to the nature of their busy roles, especially in financial 
turnaround, however it would be a valuable link.  
 
Leadership Team leads were to be advised of the discussion and get dates organised for 
January/February 2020. 
 
Transformation Update  
As part of the ongoing transformation of services across the Partnership to shift the 
balance of care, The Chair advised members of the following main workstreams currently 
being worked on: 

 Older Person’s Pathway Redesign 

 H2H Expansion/Locality MDTs 

 Frailty Unit 

 Length of Stay 

 Discharge Hub 

 Digital Transformation 

 Mental Health Transformation  

 

Page 104


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	4 MATTERS ARISING
	5a 2019/20 Budget Pressures
	Appendix-2019-55 Attachment 2 Summary of 2019-20 Budget Pressures

	6a Bi-annual Review of Risk Register
	Appendix-2019-56 Bi-Annual Review of Risk Register - Attachment 1 IJB Risk Register Summary reviewed 4 December 2019
	Appendix-2019-56 Bi-Annual Review of Risk Register - Attachment 2 RED Risks reviewed 4 December 2019

	6b Chief Social Work Officer Annual Report
	Appendix-2019-57 CSWO Annual Report - Attachment 1
	Appendix-2019-57 CSWO Annual Report - Attachment 2

	6c Monitoring of the Integration Joint Budget 2019/20
	Appendix-2019-58 IJB Attachment 1 - Combined Budget Monitoring Month 07 Final

	6d Quarterly Performance Report
	IJB Quarterly Performance Covering Report Dec 19 v1.0.pdf
	Appendix 1 - Performance Summary Dec 19.pdf
	Appendix 2_Quarterly IJB Data Summary Report.pdf

	6e Strategic Planning Group Update



